RADIAN GROUP INC Form S-3 August 13, 2004 Table of Contents

Registration Nos. 333-	
333	_
333	

As filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 13, 2004

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM S-3 REGISTRATION STATEMENT

UNDER

THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933

RADIAN GROUP INC.

(Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in Its Charter)

Delaware (State or Other Jurisdiction of 23-2691170 (I.R.S. Employer

Incorporation or Organization)

Identification Number)

RADIAN GROUP CAPITAL TRUST I

(Exact Name of each Registrant as Specified

in Its Certificate of Trust)

Delaware To Be Applied For (State or Other Jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer **Incorporation or Organization) Identification Number)** RADIAN GROUP CAPITAL TRUST II (Exact Name of each Registrant as Specified in Its Certificate of Trust) Delaware To Be Applied For (State or Other Jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer **Identification Number) Incorporation or Organization)** Howard S. Yaruss **Executive Vice President, Secretary and General Counsel**

1601 Market Street

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103

(215) 564-6600

(Address, Including Zip Code, and Telephone Number, Including Area Code, of Agent for Service)

With a Copy to:

F. Douglas Raymond, III

Drinker Biddle & Reath LLP

One Logan Square

18th and Cherry Streets

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103

(215) 988-2700

CALCULATION OF REGISTRATION FEE

If delivery of the prospectus is expected to be made pursuant to Rule 434, please check the following box. "

Debt Securities of Radian Group Inc.

Units of Radian Group Inc.

		Proposed Maximum			
	Amount to be	Proposed Maximum	Aggregate Offering	Amount of	
Title of Each Class of	Registered	Offering Price Per Unit	Price	Registration Fee	
Securities to be Registered ⁽¹⁾ Common Stock of Radian Group Inc., par value \$0.001 per share ⁽⁵⁾	(2)(4)	(3) (4)	(2) (3) (4)	(4)	
Preferred Stock of Radian Group Inc., par value \$0.001 per share					
Depositary Shares of Radian Group Inc. (6)					

Trust Preferred Securities of Radian Group Capital Trust I

Trust Preferred Securities of Radian Group Capital Trust II

Guarantees of Trust Preferred Securities of Radian Group Capital Trust I and Radian Group Capital Trust II by Radian Group Inc., and certain backup undertakings⁽⁷⁾ Total

\$800,000,000 100% \$800,000,000 \$101,360

- (1) These offered securities may be sold separately, together or as units with other offered securities.
- (2) Not specified as to each class of securities to be registered pursuant to General Instruction II(D) to Form S-3. Includes such indeterminate number or amount of Common Stock, Preferred Stock, Depositary Shares, Debt Securities and Units of Radian Group Inc. and trust preferred securities of Radian Group Capital Trust I and Radian Group Capital Trust II as may from time to time be issued at indeterminate prices, in U.S. Dollars or the equivalent thereof denominated in foreign currencies or units of two or more foreign currencies or composite currencies. In no event will the aggregate maximum offering price of all securities issued to the public pursuant to this registration statement exceed \$800,000,000. If any Debt Securities are issued at an original issue discount, then the aggregate principal amount payable at maturity may exceed \$800,000,000, but the aggregate initial offering price to the public will not exceed \$800,000,000. Certain Debt Securities of Radian Group Inc. may be issued and sold to either or both of Radian Group Capital Trust I and Radian Group Capital Trust II (instead of to the public) in connection with the issuance of trust preferred securities to the public by either or both of such trusts, in which event such Debt Securities may later be distributed to the holders of such trust preferred securities upon a dissolution of Radian Group Capital Trust I and/or Radian Group Capital Trust II and the distribution of the assets thereof.
- (3) Estimated solely for purposes of calculating the registration fee.
- (4) Pursuant to Rule 457(o) under the Securities Act of 1933, which permits the registration fee to be calculated on the basis of the maximum offering price of all the securities listed, the table does not specify by each class information as to the amount to be registered, proposed maximum offering price per unit or proposed maximum aggregate offering price. The aggregate public offering price of securities sold will not exceed \$800,000,000 (see Note 2 above). Unless otherwise indicated in an amendment to this filing, no separate consideration will be received for Common Stock, Preferred Stock or Debt Securities that are issued upon conversion or exchange of Debt Securities, Preferred Stock or Depositary Shares registered hereunder.
- (5) Also includes such presently indeterminate number of shares of Common Stock as may be issued upon conversion of or exchange for any Debt Securities or Preferred Stock that provide for conversion or exchange into Common Stock. Prior to the occurrence of certain events, such conversion or exchange rights will not be exercisable or evidenced separately from the Common Stock.
- (6) To be represented by Depositary Receipts representing an interest in all or a specified portion of a share of Preferred Stock.
- (7) No separate consideration will be received for the Guarantees. The Guarantees include the rights of holders of the trust preferred securities under the Guarantees and certain backup undertakings, comprised of obligations of Radian Group Inc. under a subordinated indenture and any supplemental indentures thereto and under the applicable trust agreement to provide certain indemnities in respect of, and be responsible for certain costs, expenses, debts and liabilities of each of Radian Group Capital Trust I and Radian Group Capital Trust II, as described in this registration statement. All obligations under the applicable trust agreement, including the indemnity obligation, are included in the back-up undertakings.

The Registrant hereby amends this Registration Statement on such date or dates as may be necessary to delay its effective date until the Registrant shall file a further amendment which specifically states that this Registration Statement shall thereafter become effective in accordance with Section 8(a) of the Securities Act of 1933 or until the Registration Statement shall become effective on such date as the Securities and Exchange Commission, acting pursuant to said Section 8(a), may determine.

The information in this prospectus is not complete and may be changed. We may not sell these securities until the registration statement filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission is effective. This prospectus is not an offer to sell these securities and it is not soliciting an offer to buy these securities in any state where the offer or sale is not permitted.

PROSPECTUS

Subject to Completion, Dated August 13, 2004

[RADIAN GROUP INC. LOGO]

\$800,000,000

Radian Group Inc.

Common Stock

Preferred Stock

Depositary Shares

Debt Securities

Units

Radian Group Capital Trust I Radian Group Capital Trust II

Trust Preferred Securities

Fully and unconditionally guaranteed,

as described in this prospectus, by

Radian Group Inc.

This prospectus is part of a registration statement that we and the trusts filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission using a shelf registration process. This means we and the trusts may sell any of the securities listed above from time to time. This prospectus contains a general description of the securities we and the trusts may offer. Each time we or any trust issue the securities we will provide a prospectus supplement containing specific information about the terms of that issuance, which also may add, update or change information contained in this prospectus. You should read carefully this prospectus and any supplements before deciding to invest. The aggregate of the offering prices of the securities covered by this prospectus will not exceed \$800,000,000. Our common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol RDN. Any common stock sold pursuant to a prospectus supplement will be listed on such exchange, subject to official notice of issuance. Any prospectus supplement will contain information, where applicable, as to any other listing (if any) on the New York Stock Exchange or any other securities exchange of the other securities covered by the prospectus supplement. The securities may be sold directly to investors, through agents designated from time to time or to or through underwriters or dealers. See Plan of Distribution. If any agents or underwriters are involved in the sale of any securities in respect of which this prospectus is being delivered, the names of such agents or underwriters and any applicable commissions or discounts will be set forth in the applicable prospectus supplement. The net proceeds we or any trust expect to receive from such sale also will be set forth in the applicable prospectus supplement. This prospectus may not be used to offer or sell any securities unless accompanied by a prospectus supplement. Consider carefully the Risk Factors beginning on page 4 before deciding to invest in these securities. Neither the SEC nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these securities or determined if this prospectus is truthful or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense. The date of this prospectus is _____

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
RADIAN GROUP INC.	1
THE TRUSTS	1
INFORMATION IN THIS PROSPECTUS	3
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARD FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION	3
RISK FACTORS	4
USE OF PROCEEDS	19
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES AND TO COMBINED FIXED CHARGES AND PREFERRED STOCK	
DIVIDENDS	19
GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF THE OFFERED SECURITIES	19
DESCRIPTION OF OUR CAPITAL STOCK	20
DESCRIPTION OF DEPOSITARY SHARES	25
DESCRIPTION OF DEBT SECURITIES	29
DESCRIPTION OF UNITS	55
DESCRIPTION OF TRUST PREFERRED SECURITIES	55
DESCRIPTION OF TRUST PREFERRED SECURITIES GUARANTEES	67
PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION	71
LEGAL MATTERS	73
EXPERTS	73
WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION	74

RADIAN GROUP INC.

Radian Group Inc. is a leading credit enhancement provider to the global financial and capital markets. Our subsidiaries provide products and services through three primary business lines: mortgage insurance, financial guaranty and other financial services. Our mortgage insurance business provides private mortgage insurance and risk management services to mortgage lending institutions. Our financial guaranty business guaranties full and timely payment of principal and interest when due to the holders of public and structured finance obligations, and reinsures public finance, structured finance and trade credit obligations. Our financial services business consists primarily of our 46% ownership interest in Credit-Based Asset Servicing and Securitization LLC a mortgage investment and servicing firm specializing in credit-sensitive, single-family residential mortgage assets and residential mortgage-backed securities and our 41.5% interest in Sherman Financial Services Group LLC a consumer asset and servicing firm specializing in charged-off and bankruptcy plan consumer assets and charged-off high loan-to-value mortgage receivables.

Our principal executive offices are located at 1601 Market Street, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103, and our telephone number is (215) 564-6600. Radian Group was incorporated in Delaware in 1992.

THE TRUSTS

Each trust is a statutory trust created under Delaware law pursuant to:

a trust agreement executed by us, as sponsor of the trust, and the trustees for the trust; and

the filing of a certificate of trust with the Delaware Secretary of State on August 12, 2004.

Before either trust issues preferred securities, the trust agreement for that trust will be amended and restated in its entirety substantially in the form filed as an exhibit to the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part and as otherwise described in the prospectus supplement relating to the offering of such securities. Each amended and restated trust agreement will be qualified as an indenture under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939. Each trust exists for the purposes of:

issuing and selling trust preferred securities that represent undivided beneficial interests in the assets of the trust;

using the proceeds from the sale of the trust preferred securities to acquire directly from us a particular series of our subordinated debt securities; and

engaging in other activities necessary or incidental to the issuance and sale of the trust preferred securities and purchase of our subordinated debt securities.

The subordinated debt securities that we may issue to a trust will be the only assets of that trust, and our payments with respect to those debt securities, together with our payments under an agreement between us and a trust as to expenses and liabilities, will be the only source of revenue for that trust.

Table of Contents

We will directly or indirectly own all of the common securities of each trust. Those common securities will rank equally, and payments will be made thereon pro rata, with the trust preferred securities of that trust, except in the case of an event of default under the amended and restated trust agreement resulting from an event of default under our subordinated debt securities held by the trust. If such an event of default has occurred and is continuing, the rights of the holders of the common securities to payment in respect of distributions and payments upon liquidation, redemption and otherwise will be subordinated to the rights of the holders of the trust preferred securities. Unless otherwise disclosed in the prospectus supplement relating to the issuance of preferred securities by a trust, the common securities of the trust that we directly or indirectly acquire will have an aggregate liquidation amount equal to at least 3% of the total capital of such trust. Each of the trusts is a legally separate entity and the assets of one are not available to satisfy the obligations of the other.

Unless otherwise disclosed in the prospectus supplement relating to the issuance of preferred securities by a trust, each trust has a term of approximately 55 years, but may dissolve earlier as provided in the amended and restated trust agreement of the applicable trust. Unless otherwise disclosed in the prospectus supplement relating to the issuance of preferred securities by a trust, each trust s business and affairs will be conducted by the trustees that we, as the direct or indirect holder of all of the common securities, appoint. As holder of the trust s common securities, we also will be entitled to appoint, remove or replace any of, or increase or reduce the number of, the trustees of a trust. The duties and obligations of the trustees of a trust will be governed by the amended and restated trust agreement of that trust.

Unless otherwise disclosed in the prospectus supplement relating to the issuance of preferred securities by a trust, two of the trustees of each trust will be administrative trustees. The administrative trustees will be persons who are employees or officers of or otherwise affiliated with us. One trustee of each trust will be the property trustee. The property trustee will be a financial institution that is not affiliated with us, that has a minimum amount of combined capital and surplus of not less than \$500,000,000 and that will act as property trustee under the terms set forth in the prospectus supplement relating to the issuance of preferred securities by a trust. The property trustee will also act as indenture trustee for the purposes of compliance with the provisions of the Trust Indenture Act. In addition, one trustee of each trust, which trustee will reside in or have its principal place of business in the State of Delaware, will be the Delaware trustee. The Delaware trustee also may be the property trustee, if it otherwise meets the requirements of applicable law. We will pay all fees and expenses related to each trust and the offering of trust preferred securities and common securities.

The principal executive offices for each of the trusts are located at c/o Radian Group Inc., 1601 Market Street, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103; telephone number (215) 564-6600.

- 2 -

INFORMATION IN THIS PROSPECTUS

You should rely only on the information contained in or incorporated by reference in this prospectus or the applicable prospectus supplement, including the information described under the heading. Where You Can Find More Information. Neither we nor either trust has authorized anyone to provide you with additional or different information. Neither we nor any trust is making an offer of these securities in any state or other jurisdiction where the offer is not permitted. You should not assume that the information contained in or incorporated by reference in this prospectus is accurate as of any date other than the date on the front of this prospectus. The terms the Company, we, us, and our refer to Radian Group Inc., the term Radian Group refers to the Company and its subsidiaries and the term trust or trusts refers to one or both of Radian Group Capital Trust I and Radian Group Capital Trust II.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

All statements in this prospectus that address operating performance, events or developments that we expect or anticipate may occur in the future are forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and the U.S. Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Generally, words such as may, will, should, could, anticipate, expect, intend, estimate, plan, continue ar negative of or other variations of these and other similar expressions identify forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are made on the basis of our current views and assumptions regarding future events, and they are subject to risks and uncertainties, including those identified in the section entitled Risk Factors. These forward-looking statements are made only as of the date of this prospectus and we do not intend to and disclaim any duty or obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements made in this prospectus to reflect new information or future events or for any other reason.

RISK FACTORS

You should consider carefully the risks described below and the additional risks set forth under the caption Risk Factors in the applicable prospectus supplement before investing in our securities. These risks could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or operating results, and could cause the trading price of our securities to decline. As a result, you could lose part or all of your investment.

Risks Affecting Our Company

Deterioration in general economic factors may increase our loss experience and decrease demand for mortgage insurance and financial guaranties.

Our business tends to be cyclical and tends to track general economic and market conditions. Our loss experience on the mortgage and financial guaranty insurance we write is subject to general economic factors that are beyond our control and that we cannot anticipate, including extended national economic recessions, interest rate changes or volatility, business failures, the impact of terrorist attacks or acts of war, or changes in investor perceptions regarding the strength of private mortgage insurers or financial guaranty providers and the policies or guaranties they offer. Deterioration of general economic conditions negatively affects our mortgage insurance business by increasing unemployment rates and by otherwise increasing the likelihood that borrowers will not pay their mortgages. Factors affecting individual borrowers, such as divorce or illness, also impact the ability of borrowers to continue to pay their mortgages. Our financial guaranty business also is impacted by adverse economic conditions due to the impact or perceived impact these conditions may have on the credit quality of municipalities and corporations. The same events that increase our loss experience in each business also generally lead to decreased demand for our mortgage insurance or financial guaranties. An increase in our loss experience or a decrease in demand for our products due to adverse economic factors could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

Because our business is geographically concentrated, deterioration in regional economic factors could increase our losses or reduce demand for our insurance.

Much of our business is concentrated in relatively few states, which increases our vulnerability to economic downturns in those states. A majority of our primary mortgage insurance in force is concentrated in ten states, with the highest percentage being in California, Florida, New York and Texas. A large percentage of our second mortgage insurance in force is concentrated in California. The recent low mortgage interest rate environment has generated increased refinancing of mortgage loans. Refinancing activity could cause increased concentration of our mortgage insurance in force in economically weaker areas because mortgage loans in areas experiencing low property value appreciation are more likely to require mortgage insurance upon refinancing than are loans in areas experiencing high property value appreciation. Our financial guaranty business also has a significant portion of its insurance in

Table of Contents

force concentrated in a small number of states, principally including New York, California, Texas and Florida, and is vulnerable to weakening economic conditions, catastrophic events, or acts of terrorism in those states.

A downgrade or potential downgrade of the insurance financial strength ratings assigned to any of our operating subsidiaries could weaken its competitive position.

The insurance financial strength ratings assigned to our subsidiaries may be downgraded by one or more of S&P, Moody s or Fitch as a result of adverse developments, as viewed by the ratings agencies, in our or our subsidiaries businesses, financial condition or operating results. These ratings are important to our ability to market our products and maintain our competitive position, as well as to maintaining customer confidence in our products, meaning that a downgrade in these ratings could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

If the financial strength ratings assigned to any of our mortgage insurance subsidiaries falls below Aa3 from Moody s or the AA level from S&P and Fitch, then national mortgage lenders and a large segment of the mortgage securitization market, including Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, generally will not purchase mortgages or mortgage-backed securities insured by that subsidiary. On the financial guaranty side, a downgrade in Radian Asset Assurance s ratings could reduce the value of its reinsurance, even to the point where primary insurers may be unwilling to continue to cede insurance to Radian Asset Assurance. In addition, many of Radian Asset Assurance s reinsurance agreements give the primary insurers the right to recapture business ceded to Radian Asset Assurance under these agreements, and in some cases the right to decrease commissions charged to Radian Asset Assurance, if Radian Asset Assurance s insurance financial strength rating is downgraded below specified levels. Accordingly, Radian Asset Assurance s competitive position and prospects for future financial guaranty insurance opportunities would be damaged by a downgrade in its ratings.

An increase in our subsidiaries risk-to-capital or leverage ratios may prevent them from writing new insurance.

Rating agencies and state insurance regulators impose capital requirements on our subsidiaries. These capital requirements include risk-to-capital ratios, leverage ratios and surplus requirements that limit the amount of insurance that these subsidiaries may write. For example, Moody s and S&P have entered into an agreement with Radian Guaranty that obligates Radian Guaranty to maintain specified levels of capital in Radian Insurance as a condition of the issuance and maintenance of Radian Insurance s ratings. A material reduction in the statutory capital and surplus of a subsidiary, whether resulting from underwriting or investment losses or otherwise, or a disproportionate increase in risk in force, could increase a subsidiary s risk-to-capital ratio or leverage ratio. This in turn could limit that subsidiary s ability to write new business or require that subsidiary to lower its ratios by obtaining capital contributions from us, reinsuring existing business or reducing the amount of new business it writes, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

If the estimates we use in establishing loss reserves for our mortgage insurance or financial guaranty business are incorrect, we may be required to take unexpected charges to income and our ratings may be reduced.

We establish loss reserves in both our mortgage insurance and financial guaranty businesses to provide for the estimated cost of claims. However, our loss reserves may be inadequate to protect us from the full amount of claims we may have to pay. Setting our loss reserves involves significant reliance on estimates of the likelihood, magnitude and timing of anticipated losses. The models and estimates we use to establish loss reserves may prove to be inaccurate, especially during an extended economic downturn. Further, if our estimates are inadequate, we may be forced by insurance and other regulators or rating agencies to increase our reserves, which could result in a downgrade of our insurance financial strength ratings. Failure to establish adequate reserves or a requirement that we increase our reserves could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

In our mortgage insurance business, we generally do not establish reserves until we are notified that a borrower has failed to make at least two payments when due. Once two payments have been missed, we establish a loss reserve by using historical models based on a variety of loan characteristics, including the status of the loan as reported by the servicer of the loan, economic conditions, the estimated amount recoverable by foreclosure and the estimated foreclosure period in the area where a default exists. These reserves are therefore based on a number of assumptions and estimates that may prove to be inaccurate.

It is even more difficult to estimate the appropriate loss reserves for our financial guaranty business because of the nature of potential losses in that business. Reserves are established for both specific and non-specific claims, and either we or the primary insurers monitor the reserves over the life of the obligation. We increase reserves when a primary insurer provides for or increases our reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses, or when a transaction deteriorates to a point where we determine a default is reasonably probable, based on all the facts and circumstances then known and estimable. In the latter scenario, we establish a specific loss reserve that represents the present value of the amount of the claim we expect that we ultimately will have to pay, including expenses associated with defending against or settling the claim.

Our success depends on our ability to assess and manage our underwriting risks.

Our mortgage insurance and financial guaranty premium rates may not adequately cover future losses. Our mortgage insurance premiums are based upon our expected risk of claims on insured loans, and take into account, among other factors, each loan s loan-to-value ratio (or LTV), type, term, occupancy status and coverage percentage. Similarly, our financial guaranty premiums are based upon our expected risk of claim on the insured obligation, and take into account, among other factors, the rating and creditworthiness of the issuer of the insured obligations, the type of insured obligation, the policy term and the structure of the transaction being insured. In addition, our premium rates take into account expected cancellation rates, operating expenses and reinsurance costs, as well as profit and capital needs and the prices that we expect our competitors to offer. We generally cannot cancel the mortgage insurance or

Table of Contents

financial guaranty insurance coverage we provide and, because we generally fix premium rates for the life of a policy when issued, we cannot adjust renewal premiums or otherwise adjust premiums over the life of a policy. If the risk underlying a particular mortgage insurance or financial guaranty coverage develops more adversely than we anticipate, or if national and regional economies undergo unanticipated stress, we generally cannot increase premium rates on in-force business or cancel coverage to mitigate the effects of these adverse developments. Despite the analytical methods we employ, our premiums earned and the associated investment income on those premiums may ultimately prove to be inadequate to compensate for losses we may incur. This could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

Our success depends on our ability to manage our investment risks.

Our income from our investment portfolio is one of our primary sources of cash flow to support our operations and claim payments. If we incorrectly calculate our policy liabilities, or if we improperly structure our investments to meet those liabilities, we could have unexpected losses, including losses resulting from forced liquidation of investments before their maturity. Our investments and investment policies and those of our subsidiaries are subject to state insurance laws, and may change depending upon regulatory, economic and market conditions and the existing or anticipated financial condition and operating requirements, including the tax position, of our business segments.

We cannot assure you that our investment objectives will be achieved. The success of our investment activity is affected by general economic conditions, which may adversely affect the markets for interest-rate-sensitive securities, including the extent and timing of investor participation in these markets, the level and volatility of interest rates and, consequently, the value of our fixed-income securities. Volatility or illiquidity in the markets in which we directly or indirectly hold positions could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

As a holding company, we depend on our subsidiaries ability to transfer funds to us to pay dividends and to meet our obligations.

We act primarily as a holding company for our insurance subsidiaries and do not have any significant operations of our own. Dividends from our subsidiaries and permitted payments to us under our tax sharing arrangements with our subsidiaries, along with income from our investment portfolio, are our principal sources of cash to pay stockholder dividends and to meet our obligations. These obligations include our operating expenses and interest and principal payments on debt. The payment of dividends and other distributions to us by our insurance subsidiaries is regulated by insurance laws and regulations. In general, dividends in excess of prescribed limits are deemed extraordinary and require insurance regulatory approval. In addition, our insurance subsidiaries ability to pay dividends to us, and our ability to pay dividends to our stockholders, is subject to various conditions imposed by the rating agencies for us to maintain our ratings. If the cash we receive from our subsidiaries pursuant to dividend payment and tax sharing arrangements is insufficient for us to fund our obligations, we may be required to seek capital by incurring additional debt, by issuing additional equity or by selling

assets, which we may be unable to do on favorable terms, if at all. The need to raise additional capital or the failure to make timely payments on our obligations could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

Our reported earnings are subject to fluctuations based on quarterly changes in our credit derivatives that require us to adjust their fair market value as reflected on our income statement.

Our financial guaranty business provides credit enhancement in the form of derivative financial guaranty contracts. The gains and losses on these derivative financial guaranty contracts are derived from internally generated models, which may differ from other models. We estimate fair value amounts using market information, to the extent available, and valuation methodologies that we deem appropriate. The gains and losses on assumed derivative financial guaranty contracts are provided by the primary insurance companies. Considerable judgment is required to interpret available market data to develop the estimates of fair value. Accordingly, our estimates are not necessarily indicative of amounts we could realize in a current market exchange, due to, among other factors, the lack of a liquid market. Temporary market changes as well as actual credit improvement or deterioration in these contracts are reflected in the mark to market gains and losses. Because these adjustments are reflected on our income statement, they affect our reported earnings and create earnings volatility even though they might not have a cash flow effect.

The performance of our strategic investments could harm our financial results.

Part of our business involves strategic investments in other companies, and we generally do not have control over the way that these companies run their day-to-day operations. The performance of our strategic investments could be harmed by:

the performance of our strategic partners;

changes in the financial markets generally and in the industries in which our strategic partners operate; and

changes in interest rates.

In addition, our ability to engage in additional strategic investments is subject to the availability of capital and maintenance of our insurance financial strength ratings.

We may not be able to effectively manage our growth.

We seek to expand our business internationally and into new markets. International expansion often requires the receipt of foreign regulatory approval that may be difficult to obtain. Our expansion into new markets presents us with different risks and management challenges. We may not be able to effectively manage new operations or successfully integrate them into our existing operations, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

- 8 -

Our business could be harmed if members of our senior management team or other key personnel terminate their employment with us.

Our future success depends, to a significant extent, upon the continued services of our senior management team and other key employees. The loss of services of one or more members of our senior management team or other key personnel could have a material adverse effect on our business and our prospects.

Our business may suffer if we are unable to meet our customers technological demands.

Participants in the mortgage insurance and financial guaranty industries rely on e-commerce and other technologies to provide and expand their products and services. Our customers generally require that we provide aspects of our products and services electronically, and the percentage of our new insurance written and claims processing that we deliver electronically has increased. We expect this trend to continue and, accordingly, we may be unable to satisfy our customers if we fail to invest sufficient resources or otherwise are unable to maintain and upgrade our technological capabilities.

Risks Particular to Our Mortgage Insurance Business

Because our mortgage insurance business is concentrated among relatively few major customers, our revenues could decline if we lose any significant customer.

Our mortgage insurance business depends on a small number of customers. Our top ten mortgage insurance customers are generally responsible for approximately half of both our primary new insurance written in a given year and our direct primary risk in force, based on the aggregate principal amount of the mortgage loans we insure multiplied by the coverage percentage. This concentration of business may increase as a result of mergers of those customers or other factors. Our master policies and related lender agreements do not, and by law cannot, require our mortgage insurance customers to do business with us. The loss of business from even one of our major customers could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

A significant portion of our mortgage insurance risk in force consists of loans with high loan-to-value ratios and loans that are non-prime, or both, which generally result in more and larger claims than loans with lower loan-to-value ratios and prime loans.

We generally provide private mortgage insurance on high-risk mortgage products. A significant portion of our mortgage insurance in force consists of insurance on mortgage loans with LTVs at origination of more than 90%. LTV is the ratio of the original loan amount to the value of the property. Mortgage loans with LTVs greater than 90% are expected to default substantially more often than those with lower LTVs. In addition, when we are required to pay a claim on a higher LTV loan, it is generally more difficult to recover our costs from the underlying property, especially in areas with declining property values. Also, a significant portion of our mortgage insurance in force is on adjustable-rate mortgage loans, which generally have higher default rates than fixed-rate loans.

We insure non-prime loans, which are more likely to go into default and require us to pay claims. The vast majority of the non-prime loans we insure are loans, known as Alt-A loans, which have credit scores commensurate with prime loans but are processed with reduced documentation. Our other non-prime loans are A minus or B/C loans, which enable borrowers with substandard credit histories to obtain mortgages and mortgage insurance. We believe that non-prime lending programs represent the largest area for future growth in the private mortgage insurance industry due to competition for prime loan business from lenders offering alternative arrangements, such as simultaneous second mortgages, which sometimes are referred to as 80-10-10 loans. Accordingly, an increasing percentage of our mortgage insurance in force is written on non-prime loans. Although we historically have limited the insurance of these non-prime loans to those made by lenders with good results and servicing experience in this area, because of the lack of data regarding the performance of non-prime loans, and our relative inexperience in insuring these loans, we may fail to estimate default rates properly and may incur larger losses than we anticipate, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results. Further, we cannot assure you that the increased premiums that we charge for mortgage insurance on non-prime loans will be adequate to compensate us for the losses we incur on these products.

Some of our mortgage insurance products are riskier than traditional mortgage insurance.

We offer pool mortgage insurance, which exposes us to different risks than the risks applicable to primary mortgage insurance. Our pool mortgage insurance products generally cover all losses in a pool of loans up to our aggregate exposure limit, which generally is between 1% and 10% of the initial aggregate loan balance of the entire pool of loans. Under pool insurance, we could be required to pay the full amount of every loan in the pool within our exposure limits that is in default and upon which a claim is made until the aggregate limit is reached, rather than a percentage of the loan amount as is the case with traditional primary mortgage insurance. We also write credit insurance on non-traditional, mortgage-related assets such as second mortgages, home equity loans and mortgages with LTVs above 100%, provide credit enhancement to mortgage-related capital market transactions, and have in the past written credit insurance on manufactured housing loans. These types of insurance generally have higher claims payouts than traditional mortgage insurance products. We have less experience writing these types of insurance and less performance data on this business, which could lead to greater losses than we anticipate. Greater than anticipated losses could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

An increasing concentration of servicers in the mortgage lending industry could lead to disruptions in the servicing of mortgage loans that we insure, resulting in increased delinquencies.

We depend on reliable, consistent third-party servicing of the loans that we insure. A recent trend in the mortgage lending and mortgage loan servicing industry has been toward consolidation of loan servicers, particularly with respect to specialized servicing such as for

- 10 -

manufactured housing loans. This reduction in the number of servicers could lead to disruptions in the servicing of mortgage loans covered by our insurance policies, which in turn could contribute to a rise in delinquencies among those loans and could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

We face the possibility of higher claims as our mortgage insurance policies age.

Historically, most claims under private mortgage insurance policies on prime loans occur during the third through fifth year after issuance of the policies, and under policies on non-prime loans during the second through fourth year after issuance of the policies. Low mortgage interest rate environments tend to lead to increased refinancing of mortgage loans and to lower the average age of our mortgage insurance policies. On the other hand, increased interest rates tend to reduce mortgage refinancings and cause a greater percentage of our mortgage insurance risk in force to reach its anticipated highest claim frequency years. In addition, periods of growth tend to reduce the average age of our policies, and the relatively recent growth of our non-prime mortgage insurance business means that a significant percentage of our insurance in force on non-prime loans has not yet reached its anticipated highest claim frequency years. If the growth of our new business were to slow or decline, a greater percentage of our total mortgage insurance in force could reach its anticipated highest claim frequency years. A resulting increase in claims could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

Our revenues from mortgage insurance depend on the annual renewals of policies that policyholders instead may terminate or fail to renew.

Most of our mortgage insurance premiums each month are derived from the annual renewal of policies that we previously have written. Recently, the rate of nonrenewal has been increasing. Factors that could cause an increase in nonrenewals of our mortgage insurance policies include falling mortgage interest rates (which tends to lead to increased refinancings and associated cancellations of mortgage insurance), appreciating home values, and changes in the mortgage insurance cancellation requirements applicable to mortgage lenders and homeowners. A decrease in the length of time that our mortgage insurance policies remain in force reduces our revenues and could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

Our delegated underwriting program may subject our mortgage insurance business to unanticipated claims.

In our mortgage insurance business, we permit many of our mortgage lender customers to commit us to insure loans using pre-established underwriting guidelines. Once we accept a lender into our delegated underwriting program, we generally insure a loan originated by that lender even if the lender has not followed our specified underwriting guidelines. Under this program, a lender could commit us to insure a material number of loans with unacceptable risk profiles before we could discover the problem and terminate that lender s delegated underwriting authority. Even if we terminate a lender s underwriting authority, we remain at risk for any loans previously insured by the lender before that termination. The performance of loans insured through programs of delegated underwriting has not been tested over a period of extended

- 11 -

Table of Contents

adverse economic conditions, meaning that the program could lead to greater losses than we anticipate. Greater than anticipated losses could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

We face risks associated with our contract underwriting business.

As part of our mortgage insurance business, we provide contract-underwriting services to some of our mortgage lender customers, even with respect to loans for which we are not providing mortgage insurance. If we make mistakes in connection with these underwriting services, in some cases the mortgage lender may require us to purchase or issue mortgage insurance on the loans, or to indemnify it against future loss associated with the loans. Accordingly, we assume some credit risk and interest rate risk if we make an error. In a rising interest rate environment, the value of loans that we are required to repurchase could decrease, and consequently, our costs of those repurchases could increase. If the independent contractors who we rely on to perform contract underwriting for us make more mistakes than we anticipate, the resulting need to provide greater than anticipated recourse to mortgage lenders could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

If housing values fail to appreciate, we may be less able to recover amounts paid on defaulted mortgages.

If a borrower defaults under our standard mortgage insurance policy, generally we have the option of paying an entire loss amount and taking title to a mortgaged property or paying our coverage percentage in full satisfaction of our obligations under the policy. In the strong housing market of recent years, we have been able to take title to the properties underlying many defaulted loans and to sell the properties quickly at prices that have allowed us to recover most or all of our losses. If housing values fail to appreciate or begin to decline, our ability to mitigate our losses on defaulted mortgages may be reduced, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

Our mortgage insurance business faces intense competition from other mortgage insurance providers and from alternative products.

The United States mortgage insurance industry is highly dynamic and intensely competitive. Our competitors include:

other private mortgage insurers, some of which are subsidiaries of well capitalized companies with stronger insurance financial strength ratings and greater access to capital than we have;

federal and state governmental and quasi-governmental agencies, principally the Veterans Administration and the Federal Housing Administration, which recently has increased its competitive position in areas with higher home prices by streamlining its down-payment formula and reducing the premiums it charges; and

- 12 -

Table of Contents

mortgage lenders that demand increased participation in revenue sharing arrangements such as captive reinsurance arrangements.

In addition, there are an increasing number of alternatives to traditional private mortgage insurance, and new alternatives may develop, which could reduce the demand for our mortgage insurance. Existing alternatives include:

mortgage lenders structuring mortgage originations to avoid private mortgage insurance, such as a first mortgage with an 80% LTV and a second mortgage with a 10% LTV which is referred to as a simultaneous second mortgage or as an 80-10-10 loan rather than a first mortgage with a 90% LTV. We believe that the use of 80-10-10 loans has increased significantly during recent years and is likely to continue to be a competitive alternative to private mortgage insurance, particularly with respect to prime loans;

investors using credit enhancements as a partial or complete substitute for private mortgage insurance;

mortgage lenders and other intermediaries that forgo third-party insurance coverage and retain the full risk of loss on their high-LTV loans; and

member institutions providing credit enhancement on loans sold to a Federal Home Loan Bank.

Much of the competition described above is directed at prime loans, which has led us to shift more of our business to insuring riskier, non-prime loans. An inability to compete with other providers and alternatives, or increased losses that may result from insuring more non-prime loans, could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

Because many of the mortgage loans that we insure are sold to Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, changes in their business practices could significantly impact our mortgage insurance business.

Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac are the beneficiaries of the majority of our mortgage insurance policies, so their business practices have a significant influence on us. Changes in their practices could reduce the number of policies they purchase that are insured by us and consequently reduce our revenues. Some of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac s more recent programs require less insurance coverage than they historically have required, and they have the ability to further reduce coverage requirements, which could reduce demand for mortgage insurance and have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac also have the ability to implement new eligibility requirements for mortgage insurers and to alter or liberalize underwriting standards on low-down-payment mortgages they purchase. We cannot predict the extent to which any new requirements may be enacted or how they may affect the operations of our mortgage insurance business, our capital requirements and our products.

- 13 -

Additionally, Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac could decide to differentiate between mortgage insurance companies rated AAA rather than AA based on risk-based capital regulations issued by the Office of Federal Housing Enterprise Oversight that took effect in 2002. Such a decision could impair our AA -rated subsidiaries ability to compete with AAA -rated companies (of which there currently is one) and could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

Legislation and regulatory changes and interpretations could harm our mortgage insurance business.

Our business and legal liabilities may be affected by the application of existing federal or state consumer, lending and insurance laws and regulations, or by unfavorable changes in these laws and regulations. For example, recent regulatory changes have reduced demand for private mortgage insurance by increasing the maximum loan amount that the Federal Housing Administration can insure and reducing the premiums it charges. Also, we have been subject to consumer lawsuits alleging violations of the provisions of the Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act (RESPA) that prohibit the giving of any fee, kickback or thing of value under any agreement or understanding that real estate settlement services will be referred. In addition, proposed changes to the application of RESPA could harm our competitive position. The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) proposed an exemption under RESPA for lenders that, at the time a borrower submits a loan application, give the borrower a firm, guaranteed price for all the settlement services associated with the loan, commonly referred to as bundling. In 2003, HUD withdrew the proposed rule and submitted another rule to the Office of Management and Budget, the contents of which have not yet been made public. If bundling is exempted from RESPA, mortgage lenders may have increased leverage over us and the premiums we are able to charge for mortgage insurance could be negatively affected.

Our international mortgage insurance operations subject us to numerous risks.

We have committed and may in the future commit additional significant resources to expand our international operations, particularly in the United Kingdom. Accordingly, we are subject to a number of risks associated with our international business activities, including:

risks of war and civil disturbances or other events that may limit or disrupt markets;

dependence on regulatory and third party approvals;

changes in rating or outlooks assigned to our foreign subsidiaries by rating agencies;

challenges in attracting and retaining key foreign-based employees, customers and business partners in international markets;

- 14 -

foreign governments monetary policies and regulatory requirements;

economic downturns in targeted foreign mortgage origination markets;

interest rate volatility in a variety of countries;

the burdens of complying with a wide variety of foreign regulations and laws, which may change unexpectedly;

potentially adverse tax consequences;

restrictions on the repatriation of earnings;

foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations; and

the need to develop and market products appropriate to the foreign market.

Any one or more of the risks listed above could render us unable to develop our international operations profitably.

Risks Particular to Our Financial Guaranty Business

Our financial guaranty business may subject us to significant risks from the failure of a single company, municipality or other entity whose obligations we have insured.

The breadth of our financial guaranty business exposes us to potential losses in a variety of our products as a result of a credit problem at one company. For example, we could be exposed to an individual corporate credit risk if the credit is contained in multiple portfolios of collateralized debt obligations that we have insured, or if we are the originator or servicer of loans or other assets backing structured securities that we have insured. Although we track our aggregate exposure to single counterparties in our various lines of business and have established underwriting criteria to manage aggregate risk from a single counterparty, we cannot assure you that our ultimate exposure to a single counterparty will not exceed our underwriting guidelines, due to merger or otherwise, or that an event with respect to a single counterparty will not cause a significant loss. In addition, because we insure or reinsure municipal obligations, we can have significant exposures to single municipal risks. Even though the risk of a complete loss on a municipal obligation generally is lower than for corporate credits because most municipal bonds are backed by taxes or other revenues, a single default by a municipality could cause a significant lack of liquidity or could result in a large or even complete loss that could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

Our financial guaranty business is concentrated among relatively few major customers, meaning that our revenues could decline if we lose any significant customer.

Our financial guaranty business derives a significant percentage of its annual gross premiums from a small number of primary insurers and trade credit reinsurers, with one primary

- 15 -

Table of Contents

insurer currently accounting for over 10% of annual gross premiums from primary insurers. A loss of business from even one of our major customers could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results. As a result of a downgrade by S&P in October 2002, one of the few primary insurer customers of our financial guaranty business exercised its right to recapture substantially all of the financial guaranty reinsurance ceded to our financial guaranty business. Further downgrades could trigger similar recapture rights in our other primary insurer customers, or we may lose a customer for other reasons, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

Some of our financial guaranty products are riskier than traditional guaranties of public finance obligations.

We write guaranties involving structured finance transactions that expose us to a variety of complex market, credit and political risks beyond those that generally apply to traditional financial guaranties. We issue guaranties connected with certain asset-backed transactions and securitizations secured by one or a few classes of assets, such as residential mortgages or other consumer assets, utility mortgage bonds and multi-family housing bonds and obligations under credit default swaps, both funded and synthetic. We also provide trade credit reinsurance, which protects sellers of goods under certain circumstances against non-payment of their accounts receivable. These guaranties expose us to the risk of buyer nonpayment, which could be triggered by many factors, including the failure of a buyer s business. These guaranties may cover receivables where the buyer and seller are in the same country as well as cross-border receivables. In the case of cross-border transactions, we sometimes grant coverage extending to political risks, such as foreign currency controls and expropriation, which could interfere with the payment from the buyer. Losses associated with these non-traditional financial guaranty products are extremely difficult to predict accurately, and a failure to properly anticipate those losses could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

We may be forced to reinsure greater risks than we desire due to adverse selection by ceding companies.

A portion of our financial guaranty reinsurance business is written under treaties that generally give the ceding company some ability to select the risks that they cede to us within the terms of the treaty. There is a risk under these treaties that the ceding companies will decide to cede to us exposures that have higher rating agency capital charges or that the ceding companies expect to be less profitable, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results. We attempt to mitigate this risk in a number of ways, including requiring ceding companies to retain a specified minimum amount of the ceded business, but we cannot assure you that our mitigation attempts will succeed.

Our financial guaranty business faces intense competition.

The financial guaranty industry is highly competitive. The principal sources of direct and indirect competition are:

other financial guaranty insurance companies;

- 16 -

Table of Contents

multiline insurers that have increased their participation in financial guaranty reinsurance, some of which have formed strategic alliances with some of the U.S. primary financial guaranty insurers; and

other forms of credit enhancement, including letters of credit, guaranties and credit default swaps provided primarily by foreign and domestic banks and other financial institutions, some of which are governmental enterprises, have been assigned the highest ratings awarded by one or more of the major rating agencies or have agreed to post collateral to support their risk position.

Competition in the financial guaranty reinsurance business is based on many factors, including overall financial strength, financial strength ratings, pricing and service. The rating agencies allow credit to a ceding company s capital requirements and single risk limits for reinsurance ceded in an amount that is in part determined by the financial strength rating of the reinsurer. Some of our competitors have greater financial resources than we have and are better capitalized than we are and/or have been assigned higher ratings by one or more of the major rating agencies. An inability to compete for desirable financial guaranty business could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

Legislation and regulatory changes and interpretations could harm our financial guaranty business.

The laws and regulations affecting the municipal, asset-backed and trade credit debt markets, as well as other governmental regulations, could be changed in ways that subject us to additional legal liability or affect the demand for the primary financial guaranty insurance and reinsurance that we provide. Any such change could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

Changes in tax laws could reduce the demand for or profitability of financial guaranty insurance, which could harm our business.

Any material change in the U.S. tax treatment of municipal securities, or the imposition of a flat tax or a national sales tax in lieu of the current federal income tax structure in the United States, could adversely affect the market for municipal obligations and, consequently, reduce the demand for related financial guaranty insurance and reinsurance. For example, the Jobs and Growth Tax Relief Reconciliation Act of 2003, enacted in May 2003, significantly reduced the federal income tax rate for individuals on dividends and long-term capital gains. This tax change may reduce demand for municipal obligations and, in turn, may reduce the demand for financial guaranty insurance and reinsurance of these obligations by increasing the comparative yield on dividend-paying equity securities. Future potential changes in U.S. tax laws, including current efforts to eliminate the federal income tax on dividends, might also affect demand for municipal obligations and for financial guaranty insurance and reinsurance of those obligations.

- 17 -

We may be unable to develop or sustain our financial guaranty business if it cannot obtain reinsurance or other forms of capital.

In order to comply with regulatory, rating agency and internal capital and single risk retention limits as our financial guaranty business grows, we need access to sufficient reinsurance or other capital capacity to underwrite transactions. The market for reinsurance recently has become more concentrated because several participants have exited the industry. If we are unable to obtain sufficient reinsurance or other forms of capital, we may be unable to issue new policies and grow our business.

The merger of Radian Reinsurance with and into Radian Asset Assurance exposes us to risks.

We merged Radian Reinsurance with and into Radian Asset Assurance effective June 1, 2004. Our reinsurance customers may view the combined entity as more of a competitor and a threat to their business and prospects because Radian Asset Assurance not only reinsures their obligations, but also could directly insure larger obligations in competition with them. As a result, any of our reinsurance customers could:

compete with us more vigorously than they do now on the direct financial guaranty transactions or other transactions we insure;

materially reduce or eliminate the reinsurance that they currently cede to us; or

become more reluctant to partner with us on transactions.

Consequently, we may experience a reduction in the number of transactions entered into, the premiums received and/or the premium rate relative to the insurance exposure on future transactions or in future reinsurance premiums written and earned.

- 18 -

USE OF PROCEEDS

Unless otherwise specified in a prospectus supplement accompanying this prospectus, we intend to use the net proceeds of any sale of securities under this prospectus for any combination of the repayment of outstanding indebtedness, working capital, capital expenditures, acquisitions and general business purposes. Each trust will invest all proceeds received from the sale of its trust preferred securities and common securities in a particular series of our subordinated debt securities. Until we use the net proceeds in the manner described above, we may temporarily use them to make short-term investments or reduce short-term borrowings.

RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES AND TO COMBINED FIXED

CHARGES AND PREFERRED STOCK DIVIDENDS

The following table sets forth our historical ratio of earnings to fixed charges and to combined fixed charges and preferred stock dividends from continuing operations. Earnings consist of income from continuing operations before income taxes, extraordinary items, cumulative effect of accounting changes, equity in net income of affiliates and fixed charges. Fixed charges consist of interest expense and capitalized interest and an estimate of interest expense within rental expense. Combined fixed charges and preferred stock dividends consist of fixed charges, as defined above, and the amount of pre-tax earnings required to pay the dividends on our preferred stock.

	Six Months Ended June 30,	Fiscal Years Ended					
		December 31,					
	2004	2003	2002	2001	2000	1999	
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges	18.0x	12.1x	18.3x	25.0x	151.1x	105.1x	
Ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges and preferred stock dividends	18.0x	12.1x	15.7x	21.6x	63.4x	41.6x	

GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF THE OFFERED SECURITIES

We may from time to time offer under this prospectus, separately or together:

common stock;

preferred stock, which may be represented by depositary shares as described below;

unsecured senior, senior subordinated or subordinated debt securities; and

units, each representing a combination of two or more of the foregoing securities.

- 19 -

Each trust may offer preferred securities of that trust representing undivided beneficial interests in its assets, which we will fully and unconditionally guarantee to the extent described in this prospectus.

The aggregate of the offering prices of the securities covered by this prospectus will not exceed \$800,000,000.

DESCRIPTION OF OUR CAPITAL STOCK

The following is a general description of our capital stock. The terms of our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and bylaws are more detailed than the general information provided below. You should read our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and bylaws, which are incorporated by reference as exhibits to the registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part, and carefully consider the provisions of those documents that are important to you.

Authorized and Outstanding Capital Stock

We are authorized to issue a total of 220,000,000 shares of our capital stock, with a par value of \$0.001 per share. Of the authorized amount, 200,000,000 of the shares are designated as common stock and 20,000,000 of the shares are designated as preferred stock.

As of August 2, 2004, there were 92,756,215 shares of common stock issued and outstanding, and no shares of preferred stock were issued or outstanding.

Anti-takeover Provisions

Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws. Certain provisions of our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and bylaws summarized below may delay, defer or prevent a tender offer or takeover attempt, including attempts that might result in a premium over the market price for our securities. Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and bylaws provide:

that directors can be removed only for cause and only upon the vote of the holders of shares entitled to cast a majority of the votes that all stockholders are entitled to cast in an election of directors;

that we may issue preferred stock with such rights, preferences, privileges and limitations as our board of directors may establish;

that special meetings of stockholders may only be called by the chairman of the board, a majority of the board of directors or the holders of a majority of the shares of common stock then outstanding;

advance notice procedures with regard to the nomination, other than by or at the direction of the board of directors or a committee of the board, of candidates for election as directors; and

- 20 -

Table of Contents

procedures providing that a notice of proposed stockholder nominations for the election of directors must be timely given in writing to our secretary generally not less than 60 days before the meeting at which directors are to be elected.

Restrictions on Ownership Under Insurance Laws. The application of various state insurance laws could be a significant deterrent to any person interested in acquiring control of us. The insurance holding company laws of each of the jurisdictions in which our insurance subsidiaries are incorporated or commercially domiciled govern any acquisition of control of our insurance subsidiaries or of us. In general, these laws provide that no person or entity may directly or indirectly acquire control of an insurance company unless that person or entity has received the prior approval of the insurance regulatory authorities. An acquisition of control would be presumed in the case of any person or entity who purchases 10% or more of our outstanding common stock, unless the applicable insurance regulatory authorities determine otherwise.

Delaware General Corporation Law. The terms of Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law apply to us because we are a publicly-traded Delaware corporation. Pursuant to Section 203, with certain exceptions, a Delaware corporation may not engage in any of a broad range of business combinations, such as mergers, consolidations and sales of assets, with an interested stockholder, as defined below, for a period of three years from the date that person became an interested stockholder, unless:

the transaction that results in a person becoming an interested stockholder or the business combination is approved by the board of directors of the corporation before the person becomes an interested stockholder;

upon consummation of the transaction that results in the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder, the interested stockholder owns 85% or more of the voting stock of the corporation outstanding at the time the transaction commenced, excluding shares owned by persons who are directors and also officers and shares owned by certain employee stock plans; or

on or after the time the person becomes an interested stockholder, the business combination is approved by the corporation s board of directors and by holders of at least two-thirds of the corporation s outstanding voting stock, excluding shares owned by the interested stockholder, at a meeting of stockholders.

Under Section 203, an interested stockholder is defined as any person, other than the corporation and any direct or indirect majority-owned subsidiary, that is:

the owner of 15% or more of the outstanding voting stock of the corporation; or

an affiliate or associate of the corporation and was the owner of 15% or more of the outstanding voting stock of the corporation at any time within the three-year period immediately before the date on which it is sought to be determined whether such person is an interested stockholder.

- 21 -

Section 203 does not apply to a corporation that so provides in an amendment to its certificate of incorporation or bylaws passed by a majority of its outstanding shares at any time. Such stockholder action does not become effective for 12 months following its adoption and would not apply to persons who were already interested stockholders at the time of the amendment. Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation does not exclude us from the restrictions imposed under Section 203.

Under certain circumstances, Section 203 makes it more difficult for a person who would be an interested stockholder to effect various business combinations with a corporation for a three-year period, although the stockholders may elect to exclude a corporation from the restrictions imposed thereunder. The provisions of Section 203 may encourage companies interested in acquiring us to negotiate in advance with our board of directors, because the stockholder approval requirement would be avoided if a majority of the directors then in office approve either the business combination or the transaction that results in the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder. These provisions also may have the effect of preventing changes in our management, and they could make it more difficult to accomplish transactions that stockholders may otherwise deem to be in their best interest.

Transfer Agent and Registrar

Our principal transfer agent and registrar for common stock is The Bank of New York. The transfer agent and registrar for any shares of preferred stock we issue will be set forth in the prospectus supplement relating to such series of preferred stock.

Description of Common Stock

General. Each share of our common stock has the same rights and privileges. Holders of our common stock do not have any preferences or any preemptive, redemption, subscription, conversion or exchange rights. All of our outstanding shares of common stock are fully paid and nonassessable. Our common stock is listed on the NYSE under the symbol RDN.

Voting Rights. The holders of our common stock are entitled to vote upon all matters submitted to a vote of our stockholders and are entitled to one vote for each share of common stock held. There is no cumulative voting.

Dividends. Subject to the prior rights and preferences, if any, applicable to shares of preferred stock or any series of preferred stock, the holders of common stock are entitled to participate ratably in all dividends, payable in cash, stock or otherwise, that may be declared by our board of directors out of any funds legally available for the payment of dividends. Each such distribution will be payable to holders of record as they appear on our stock transfer books on such record dates as shall be fixed by our board of directors.

Liquidation and Distribution. If we voluntarily or involuntarily liquidate, dissolve or wind-up, or upon any distribution of our assets, the holders of our common stock will be entitled to receive, after distribution in full of the preferential amounts, if any, to be distributed to the holders of any series of preferred stock, all of the remaining assets available for distribution equally and ratably in proportion to the number of shares of common stock held by them.

- 22 -

Description of Preferred Stock

General. Under our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, our board of directors is authorized, without further stockholder action, to provide for the issuance of shares of preferred stock in one or more series, with such voting powers and with such designations, preferences and relative, participating, optional or other special rights, qualifications, privileges, limitations or restrictions, as may be determined by our board of directors and set forth in a certificate of designation. We may amend from time to time our certificate of incorporation and bylaws to increase the number of authorized shares of preferred stock or common stock or to make other changes or additions.

Any preferred stock that we issue under this prospectus will have the voting, dividend, liquidation, redemption and conversion rights described below unless otherwise provided in the prospectus supplement relating to a particular series of preferred stock. You should read the prospectus supplement relating to the particular series of preferred stock for specific terms of the series, including:

the title and liquidation preference per share and the number of shares offered;

the price at which it will be sold;

the dividend rate, or method of calculation of dividends, the dates on which dividends will be payable, whether such dividends shall be cumulative or noncumulative and, if cumulative, the dates from which dividends will commence to accumulate:

any redemption or sinking fund provisions;

any conversion provisions; and

any additional dividend, liquidation, redemption or sinking fund provisions and other rights, preferences, privileges, limitations and restrictions of such preferred stock.

When issued, the preferred stock will be fully paid and nonassessable. Unless otherwise specified in the prospectus supplement relating to a series of preferred stock, each series of preferred stock will rank on a parity as to dividends and distributions in the event of a liquidation with all other outstanding preferred stock, if any. Below is a discussion of terms we expect to be generally applicable to the preferred stock. We will set forth any terms of a series of preferred stock that vary from these generally applicable terms in a prospectus supplement relating to such series of preferred stock.

Voting Rights. Except as expressly required by applicable law, a holder of the preferred stock will not be entitled to vote. If we issue shares of any series of preferred stock, holders of such shares will be entitled to one vote for each share held on matters on which holders of such series are entitled to vote.

The affirmative vote or consent of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of each series of preferred stock, unless our board of directors establishes a higher amount, voting as a separate class, will be required for any amendment of our certificate of incorporation that adversely changes any rights or preferences of such series of preferred stock.

- 23 -

Table of Contents

Dividend Rights. Holders of the preferred stock of a particular series will be entitled to receive, when, as and if declared by our board of directors, out of our assets legally available therefor, cash dividends at such rates and on such dates as are set forth in the prospectus supplement relating to such series. The rate may be fixed or variable or both. Dividends will be payable to the holders of record as they appear on our stock books on the record dates fixed by our board of directors or a duly authorized committee thereof. Dividends on any series of preferred stock may be cumulative or noncumulative, as provided in the prospectus supplement relating to such series of preferred stock. If our board of directors fails to declare a dividend payable on a dividend payment date on any series of preferred stock for which dividends are noncumulative, then the right to receive a dividend in respect of the dividend period ending on such dividend payment day will be lost, and we will have no obligation to pay the dividend accrued for that period, whether or not dividends are declared for any subsequent period.

If the prospectus supplement relating to a series of preferred stock so provides, when dividends are not paid in full upon any series of preferred stock and any other preferred stock ranking on a parity as to dividends with such series of preferred stock, all dividends declared upon such series of preferred stock and any other preferred stock ranking on a parity as to dividends will be declared pro rata so that the amount of dividends declared per share on such series and such other preferred stock will in all cases bear to each other the same ratio that accrued dividends per share on such series of preferred stock and such other preferred stock bear to each other. Except as provided in the preceding sentence, unless full dividends, including, in the case of cumulative preferred stock, accumulations, if any, in respect of prior dividend payment periods on all outstanding shares of any series of preferred stock have been paid, no dividends, other than in shares of common stock or another stock ranking junior to such series of preferred stock as to dividends and upon liquidation, will be declared or paid or set aside for payment or other distributions made upon our common stock or any of our other stock ranking junior to such preferred stock (including other series of preferred stock ranking junior to such series of preferred stock) as to dividends. If the prospectus supplement relating to a series of preferred stock so provides, no common stock or any other stock (including other series of preferred stock) ranking junior to or on a parity with such series of preferred stock as to dividends or upon liquidation may be redeemed, purchased or otherwise acquired for any consideration, or any monies paid to or made available for a sinking fund for the redemption of any shares of any such stock, by us, except by conversion into or exchange for our stock ranking junior to such series of preferred stock as to dividends and upon liquidation.

The amount of dividends payable for each dividend period will be computed by annualizing the applicable dividend rate and dividing by the number of dividend periods in a year, except that the amount of dividends payable for the initial dividend period or any period shorter than a full dividend period will be computed on the basis of 30-day months, a 360-day year and the actual number of days elapsed in the period.

Liquidation and Distribution. In the event of any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of our business, the holders of each series of preferred stock will be entitled to receive out of our assets available for distribution to stockholders, before any distribution of assets is made to holders of common stock or any other class of stock ranking junior to such series of preferred stock upon liquidation, liquidating distributions in the amount set forth in the prospectus supplement relating to such series of preferred stock. If, upon any

- 24 -

Table of Contents

voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of our business, the amounts payable with respect to the preferred stock of any series and any other shares of our stock ranking as to any such distribution on a parity with such series of preferred stock are not paid in full, the holders of the preferred stock of such series and of such other shares will share ratably in any such distribution of our assets in proportion to the full respective preferential amounts to which they are entitled.

Redemption. A series of preferred stock may be redeemable, in whole or in part, at our option, and may be subject to mandatory redemption pursuant to a sinking fund or otherwise, in each case upon terms, at the times and the redemption prices and for the types of consideration set forth in the prospectus supplement relating to such series.

The prospectus supplement relating to a series of preferred stock that is subject to mandatory redemption will specify the number of shares of such series of preferred stock to be redeemed by us in each year commencing after a date or event to be specified, at a redemption price per share to be specified, together with an amount equal to any accrued and unpaid dividends thereon to the date of redemption.

Conversion or Exchange Rights. The prospectus supplement relating to a series of preferred stock will state the terms, if any, on which shares of that series are convertible or exchangeable into shares of our common stock, debt securities or another series of our preferred stock. These provisions may allow or require the number of our shares of common stock or other securities to be received by holders of shares of preferred stock to be adjusted upon the occurrence of events described in the prospectus supplement relating to such series of preferred stock. Unless the prospectus supplement relating to a series of preferred stock so provides, our preferred stock will have no preemptive rights.

DESCRIPTION OF DEPOSITARY SHARES

We describe in this section the general terms of the depositary shares. We will describe the specific terms of the depositary shares in a prospectus supplement. The following description of the deposit agreement, the depositary shares and the depositary receipts is only a summary and you should refer to the forms of the deposit agreement and depositary share certificate that will be filed with the SEC in connection with any particular offering of depositary shares.

General

We may offer fractional interests in preferred stock, rather than full shares of preferred stock. In that case, we will provide for the issuance by a depositary to investors of receipts for depositary shares, each representing a fractional interest in a share of a particular series of preferred stock.

The shares of any series of preferred stock underlying the depositary shares will be deposited under a deposit agreement between us and the depositary, which must be a bank or trust company having its principal office in the United States and having a combined capital and surplus of at least \$500,000,000 and will be named in the applicable prospectus supplement. Subject to the terms of the deposit agreement, each owner of a depositary share will have a

Table of Contents 38

- 25 -

fractional interest in all the rights and preferences of the preferred stock underlying such depositary share. Those rights include any dividend, voting, redemption, conversion and liquidation rights.

The depositary shares will be evidenced by depositary receipts issued under the deposit agreement. If you purchase fractional interests in shares of the related series of preferred stock, you will receive depositary receipts as described in the applicable prospectus supplement. While the final depositary receipts are being prepared, we may order the depositary to issue temporary depositary receipts substantially identical to the final depositary receipts although not in final form. The holders of the temporary depositary receipts will be entitled to the same rights as if they held the depositary receipts in final form. Holders of the temporary depositary receipts can exchange them for the final depositary receipts at our expense.

Dividends and Other Distributions

The depositary will distribute all cash dividends and other cash distributions received in respect of the preferred stock to the record holders of depositary shares representing the preferred stock in proportion to the number of depositary shares owned by such holders on the relevant record date.

If there is a distribution other than in cash, the depositary will distribute property received by it to the record holders of depositary shares entitled thereto, unless the depositary determines that it is not feasible to make such distribution, in which case the depositary may, with our approval, sell such property and distribute the net proceeds from such sale to such holders.

Withdrawal

Unless otherwise indicated in the applicable prospectus supplement and unless the related depositary shares have been called for redemption, if you surrender depositary receipts at the principal office of the depositary, then you are entitled to receive at that office the number of shares of preferred stock and any money or other property represented by such depositary shares. We will not issue partial shares of preferred stock. If you deliver depositary receipts evidencing a number of depositary shares that represent more than a whole number of shares of preferred stock, the depositary will issue to you a new depositary receipt evidencing the excess number of depositary shares at the same time that the preferred stock is withdrawn. Holders of shares of preferred stock received in exchange for depositary shares will no longer be entitled to deposit those shares under the deposit agreement or to receive depositary shares in exchange for those shares of preferred stock.

Redemption of Depositary Shares

Unless otherwise specified in the applicable prospectus supplement, neither the depositary shares nor the series of preferred stock underlying the depositary shares will be convertible or exchangeable into any other class or series of our capital stock.

If the series of the preferred stock underlying the depositary shares is subject to redemption, the depositary shares will be redeemed from the redemption proceeds, in whole or in part, of the series of the preferred stock held by the depositary. The redemption price per

- 26 -

depositary share will bear the same relationship to the redemption price per share of preferred stock that the depositary share bears to the underlying preferred stock. Whenever we redeem preferred stock held by the depositary, the depositary will redeem, as of the same date, the number of depositary shares representing the preferred stock redeemed. If less than all the depositary shares are to be redeemed, the depositary shares to be redeemed will be selected by lot or pro rata as determined by the depositary.

Voting the Preferred Stock

Upon receipt of notice of any meeting at which the holders of the preferred stock are entitled to vote, the depositary will mail information about the meeting contained in the notice to the record holders of the depositary shares relating to the preferred stock. Each record holder of the depositary shares on the record date (which will be the same date as the record date for the preferred stock) will be entitled to instruct the depositary as to how the preferred stock underlying the holder s depositary shares should be voted. The depositary will try, insofar as practicable, to vote the number of shares of the preferred stock represented by such depositary shares in accordance with such instructions, and we will agree to take all action that the depositary deems necessary in order to enable the depositary to do so. The depositary will abstain from voting shares of preferred stock to the extent it does not receive specific instructions from the holders of depositary shares representing such shares of preferred stock.

Amendment and Termination of the Deposit Agreement

We may amend the form of depositary receipt evidencing the depositary shares and any provision of the deposit agreement by agreement with the depositary at any time. However, any amendment that materially and adversely alters the rights of the holders of depositary receipts of a particular series or class will not be effective unless such amendment has been approved by the holders of depositary receipts representing at least a majority of the depositary shares of such series or class then outstanding. Additionally, in the case of amendments relating to or affecting rights to receive dividends or distributions or voting or redemption rights, approval is required by the holders of depositary receipts representing not less than a specified percentage or all of the depositary shares of such series or class then outstanding, as provided in the applicable prospectus supplement. The deposit agreement may be terminated by us or the depositary only if:

all outstanding depositary shares relating to the deposit agreement have been redeemed or converted into or exchanged for other securities;

there has been a final distribution on the underlying preferred stock in connection with our liquidation, dissolution or winding up and the distribution has been made to the holders of the related depositary shares evidenced by depositary receipts; or

the holders of depositary receipts representing not less than a specified majority of the depositary shares outstanding have consented to such termination.

Charges of Depositary

We will pay all transfer and other taxes and governmental charges arising solely from the

- 27 -

Table of Contents

existence of the depositary arrangements. We also will pay charges of the depositary in connection with the initial deposit of the related class or series of shares of preferred stock and any redemption of such shares of preferred stock. Holders of depositary receipts will pay all other transfer and other taxes and governmental charges and such other charges as are expressly provided in the deposit agreement for their accounts.

The depositary may refuse to effect any transfer of a depositary receipt or any withdrawal of shares of a class or series of shares of preferred stock evidenced thereby until all such taxes and charges with respect to such depositary receipt or such shares of preferred stock are paid by the holders thereof.

Miscellaneous

The depositary will forward to the holders of depositary receipts all reports and communications that we must furnish to the holders of the preferred stock.

Neither we nor the depositary will be liable if either of us is prevented or delayed by law or any circumstance beyond our control in performing our respective obligations under the deposit agreement. Our obligations and the depositary s obligations under the deposit agreement will be limited to performance in good faith of duties set forth in the deposit agreement. Neither we nor the depositary will be obligated to prosecute or defend any legal proceeding connected with any depositary shares or preferred stock unless satisfactory indemnity is furnished. We and the depositary may rely upon written advice of counsel or accountants, or information provided by persons presenting preferred stock for deposit, holders of depositary shares or other persons believed to be competent and on documents believed to be genuine.

Resignation and Removal of Depositary

The depositary may resign at any time by delivering notice to us. We may also remove the depositary at any time. Resignations or removals will take effect upon the appointment of a successor depositary and its acceptance of the appointment. The successor depositary must be appointed within 60 days after delivery of the notice of resignation or removal and must be a bank or trust company having its principal office in the United States and having a combined capital and surplus of at least \$500,000,000.

- 28 -

DESCRIPTION OF DEBT SECURITIES

The following is a general description of the debt securities that we may issue from time to time. The particular terms relating to each debt security, which may be different from or in addition to the terms described below, will be set forth in a prospectus supplement relating to such securities.

The debt securities will be our direct obligations. The senior debt securities will rank equally with all of our other senior and unsubordinated debt. The senior subordinated debt securities will have a junior position to all of our senior debt, which is generally defined in both the subordinated indenture and senior subordinated indenture to include all debt other than debt that is expressly subordinated to or pari passu with the subordinated debt securities or senior subordinated debt securities, as the case may be. The subordinated debt securities will have a junior position to all of our senior debt and senior subordinated debt. The senior debt securities will be issued under a senior debt indenture, the senior subordinated debt securities will be issued under one of two separate indentures. All of the indentures will be qualified under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939.

Our subordinated debt securities that are issued to a trust in connection with the issuance of trust preferred securities and common securities by that trust will be issued under an indenture that we sometimes refer to in this prospectus as the trust-issued subordinated indenture. Our other subordinated debt securities will be issued under an indenture that we sometimes refer to in this prospectus as the subordinated indenture, and the trust-issued subordinated indenture and the subordinated indenture are sometimes referred to in this prospectus collectively as the subordinated indentures. The subordinated debt securities whether issued to a trust pursuant to a trust-issued subordinated indenture or issued directly by us to debt holders other than a trust—will have a junior position to all of our senior debt and all of our senior subordinated debt.

Because most of our operations are conducted through our insurance subsidiaries, a significant portion of our cash flow, and consequently, our ability to service debt, including the debt securities, is dependent upon the earnings of those subsidiaries and the transfer of funds by those subsidiaries to us in the form of dividends or other transfers, supplemented with borrowings. Our insurance subsidiaries may only declare and pay dividends to us if they are permitted to do so under the insurance laws and regulations of the states where they are domiciled.

Some of our subsidiaries may finance their operations by borrowing from external creditors; lending agreements between some of the operating subsidiaries and external creditors also may restrict the amount of net assets available for cash dividends and other payments to us, although presently no such agreements impose those restrictions.

Because we are a holding company, we rely on dividends from our subsidiaries for revenue, and therefore to make payments in respect of our securities. As such, any securities we issue will be structurally subordinated to the indebtedness and other liabilities, if any, of our subsidiaries, including claims of our subsidiaries policyholders, trade creditors, preferred

stockholders and creditors, and any taxing authorities. Any claims we have as an unsecured creditor of one of our subsidiaries would be subordinate to any security interest in the assets of that subsidiary and any indebtedness of that subsidiary senior to the indebtedness held by us.

We have summarized below the material provisions of the four indentures. The summary is not complete and is subject in all respects to the provisions of and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the forms of indentures, which are filed as exhibits to the registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part. The prospectus supplement relating to the applicable issuance of debt securities will describe any significant differences between the indentures and the summary below. The senior indenture, the senior subordinated indenture and the subordinated indenture are substantially the same, except for certain covenants of ours and provisions relating to subordinated indenture and the trust-issued subordinated indenture are substantially the same, except for certain rights and covenants of ours and provisions relating to the issuance of securities to a trust. You should read the indentures for provisions that may be important to you.

Terms Applicable to All Debt Securities

No Limit on Debt Amounts. The indentures do not limit the amount of debt that can be issued under the indentures. These amounts are set from time to time by our board of directors.

Prospectus Supplements. The prospectus supplement relating to a series of debt securities will summarize the specific terms of such debt securities and the related offering including, with respect to each series of debt securities, some or all of the following, as well as any other material terms of the securities:

title and form of the securities;
offering price;
any limit on the amount that may be issued;
maturity date(s);
interest rate or the method of computing the interest rate (including, if applicable, any provisions relating to the resetting of such rate and any maximum rate applicable to any reset rate);
dates on which interest will accrue, or how the dates will be determined, the interest payment dates and any related record dates;
terms and conditions on which the securities may be redeemed, in whole or in part, at our option;
date(s), if any, on which, and the price(s) at which we are obligated to redeem, or at the holder s option to purchase, in whole or in part, the securities and related terms and provisions:

details of any required sinking fund payments;

- 30 -

Table of Contents

the currency or currencies in which the securities will be denominated or payable, if other than U.S. dollars;

any index, formula or other method by which payments on the securities will be determined, and any special voting or defeasance provisions in connection with a determination, if the amount of payments are to be determined with reference to an index, formula or other method;

the persons to whom payments of interest will be made;

any provisions granting special rights to holders when a specified event occurs;

any changes to or additional events of default or covenants beyond or modifying those contained in the applicable indenture;

any special tax implications of the securities; including under what circumstances, if any, and with what procedures and documentation we will pay additional amounts on the securities held by a non-U.S. person in respect of taxes, assessments or similar charges withheld or deducted and, if so, the terms related to any option we will have to redeem those securities rather than pay those additional amounts:

whether or not the securities will be issued in global form and who the depositary will be;

any restrictions on the registration, transfer or exchange of the securities;

the place or places where securities may be surrendered for registration of transfer or for exchange, where notices and demands to or upon us in respect of the securities and the applicable indenture may be served and where notices to holders will be published;

terms, if any, on which a series of securities may be convertible into or exchangeable for our shares of common or preferred stock, or for other securities, including provisions as to whether conversion or exchange is mandatory, at the option of the holder or at our option;

if the securities are convertible or exchangeable, the events or circumstances that will result in adjustments to the conversion or exchange price and the formulae for determining the adjusted price;

in the case of subordinated securities issued to a trust, the terms and conditions of any obligation or right of ours or a holder to exchange such subordinated securities for trust preferred securities of that trust;

in the case of subordinated securities issued to a trust, the terms and conditions of the amended and restated trust agreement and the agreement relating to our guarantee of the trust preferred securities of that trust;

whether the securities are secured or unsecured, and if secured, the amount and form of the security and related terms;

Table of Contents

subordination terms of any senior subordinated securities and subordinated securities; and

any other terms that are not inconsistent with the indenture applicable to a series of debt securities, including any terms that may be required by or advisable under United States laws or regulations or advisable (as determined by us) in connection with the marketing of that series of securities.

Unless otherwise provided in an applicable indenture relating to debt securities, the debt securities will be issued only in fully registered form, without coupons, in denominations of \$1,000 or any integral multiple thereof. No service charge will be made for any transfer or exchange of the debt securities, but we may require payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge payable in connection with a transfer or exchange, other than exchanges not involving any transfer, such as the issuance of definitive securities in replacement of temporary securities or the issuance of new securities upon surrender of a security that is transferred or redeemed in part.

A series of debt securities may be issued under the relevant indenture as original issue discount securities, which are securities that are offered and sold at a substantial discount from their stated principal amount. In addition, debt securities offered and sold at their stated principal amount may under some circumstances, pursuant to applicable Treasury Regulations, be treated as issued at an original issue discount for federal income tax purposes. Federal income tax consequences and other special considerations applicable to any such original issue discount securities (or other debt securities treated as issued at an original issue discount) will be described in the prospectus supplement relating to those securities.

Covenants. We will agree in the indentures to:

pay the principal, interest and any premium on the debt securities when due;

maintain an office or agency where debt securities may be surrendered for registration of transfer, exchange, payment or conversion (if the debt securities are convertible) and where notices and demands to or upon us in respect of the debt securities and the relevant indenture may be served;

prepare and file or deliver certain reports, as more fully specified in the relevant indenture, with the trustee under the relevant indenture, the SEC, and/or registered holders of debt securities, as the case may be;

deliver to the trustee under the relevant indenture, as more fully specified in that indenture, officers certificates relating to our compliance under the relevant indenture and the occurrence of any default or event of default under that indenture;

comply with certain limitations on our ability to create, assume, incur or permit to exist any indebtedness secured by a lien on the capital stock of our significant subsidiaries;

Table of Contents

comply with certain limitations on our ability to sell, transfer or dispose of the capital stock of our significant subsidiaries; and

unless our Board of Directors determines that it is no longer desirable in the conduct of our business and that there will be no adverse impact in any material respect to the holders of debt securities, do or cause to be done all things necessary to preserve and keep in full force and effect our existence as a corporation and our rights, charter and statutory, and franchises.

Consolidation, Merger and Sale of Assets. We will not consolidate with or merge into any other entity or transfer all or substantially all of our assets unless:

we are the surviving entity; or

the successor or surviving entity assumes all of our obligations under the debt securities and the indentures pursuant to supplemental indentures in forms reasonably satisfactory to the trustee(s) under the relevant indentures and either (A) is organized or existing under the laws of the United States of America, any state thereof or the District of Columbia or (B) if not organized in any such jurisdiction, then (1) the successor or surviving entity agrees to be subject to the service of process laws of the State of New York, and (2) under the laws of its jurisdiction of organization, payments on the securities would not be subject to withholding tax; and, in any case,

after giving effect to such transaction, no event of default under the relevant indenture and no event that, after notice or lapse of time, or both, would become an event of default, will have happened and be continuing.

Upon any such consolidation, merger or transfer, the successor will be substituted for us under the indenture. In the case of a sale of all of our assets that meets the requirements stated in the immediately preceding paragraph, we will be relieved of all obligations and covenants under the indenture and the debt securities.

Satisfaction and Discharge. Upon our request, the relevant indenture will no longer be effective with respect to any series for all but certain specified purposes if either:

all outstanding securities of that series have been delivered to the trustee for cancellation, we have paid all sums payable in respect of that series and we have delivered to the trustee a certificate and opinion of legal counsel that all conditions precedent to satisfaction and discharge have been fulfilled; or

the only securities that remain outstanding have, or within one year will, become due and payable or are to be called for redemption, we have deposited with the trustee funds that are sufficient to make all future payments, no default or event of default will have occurred and be continuing on the date of that deposit, we have paid all other sums payable in respect of that series, and we have delivered to the trustee a certificate and opinion of counsel that all conditions precedent to satisfaction and discharge have been fulfilled.

Table of Contents

Legal Defeasance and Covenant Defeasance. Under each indenture, we may elect with respect to a series of debt securities, at our option and subject to the satisfaction of the conditions described below, either:

to be deemed to have paid and discharged the entire indebtedness represented by the outstanding securities of the applicable series and to have satisfied all of our other obligations under the securities of the applicable series and under the provisions of the relevant indenture, which we refer to as legal defeasance; or

to be released from some of our obligations under the relevant indenture, which we refer to as covenant defeasance.

We can exercise legal or covenant defeasance if we put in place the following arrangements:

we must irrevocably deposit with the applicable indenture trustee (or another trustee meeting certain eligibility requirements and agreeing to be bound by the applicable provisions of the relevant indenture), in trust, for the benefit of the holders of the applicable series of debt securities:

cash in United States dollars:

non-callable and non-redeemable direct obligations of the United States of America or of an agency or instrumentality controlled or supervised by the United States of America, in each instance, the payment of which is unconditionally guaranteed as a full faith and credit obligation of the United States of America; or

a combination of the foregoing that, in each case, is sufficient, in the opinion of a nationally recognized firm of independent public accountants, to pay the principal of, interest and premium, if any, on the outstanding debt securities of the applicable series on their stated maturity or applicable redemption date, as the case may be, and any mandatory sinking fund payments applicable to that particular series of debt securities on the day on which the payments are due;

we must deliver to the trustee an opinion of counsel confirming that the holders of the outstanding securities of the applicable series will not recognize income, gain or loss for federal income tax purposes as a result of the defeasance;

no default or event of default shall have occurred and be continuing on the date of the deposit of the amounts to be held in trust for the benefit of the holders (other than a default or event of default resulting from the borrowing of funds to be applied to the deposit) or in the case of any insolvency-related defaults, at any time in the period ending on the 91st day after the date of the deposit (or greater period of time in which any such deposit of trust funds may remain subject to bankruptcy or insolvency laws that apply to the deposit by us); and

Table of Contents

we must deliver to the trustee an officers certificate and an opinion of counsel, each stating that all conditions precedent provided for or relating to legal defeasance or covenant defeasance, as the case may be, have been complied with.

After satisfying the conditions for legal defeasance, the applicable debt securities will be deemed outstanding only for limited purposes as more fully set forth in the relevant indenture. After legal defeasance, the holders of outstanding debt securities will have to rely solely on the deposits we make to the trust for repayment of the debt securities.

After satisfying the conditions for covenant defeasance, the debt securities of the applicable series will be deemed not outstanding for the purposes of the covenants from which we have been released, but will continue to be deemed outstanding for all other purposes under the relevant indenture.

The prospectus supplement relating to a series of debt securities may describe additional provisions, if any, permitting legal defeasance or covenant defeasance, and any modifications to the provisions described above, with respect to the debt securities of a particular series.

Information Concerning the Trustee. The prospectus supplement relating to a series of debt securities will include information concerning the trustee under the applicable indenture and our relationship with the trustee at the time any debt securities are offered.

Form, Exchange, Transfer. Unless otherwise specified in a prospectus supplement relating to a series of debt securities, debt securities will be issued in registered form without coupons. They also may be issued in global form with accompanying book-entry procedures as outlined below.

A holder of debt securities of any series may exchange the debt securities for other debt securities of the same series, in any authorized denomination and with the same terms and aggregate principal amount. The securities are transferable at the corporate trust office or corporate trust agency office of the trustee or at any transfer agent designated by us for that purpose. No service charge will be made for any transfer or exchange of the debt securities, but we may require payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge payable in connection with a transfer or exchange, other than exchanges not involving any transfer, like the issuance of definitive securities in replacement of temporary securities or the issuance of new securities upon surrender of a security that is redeemed in part.

Global Securities. The registered debt securities may be issued in the form of one or more fully registered global securities that will be deposited with and registered in the name of a depositary or in the name of a nominee for a depositary identified in the prospectus supplement relating to such debt securities. The specific terms of the depositary arrangement with respect to any debt securities to be represented by a registered global security will be described in the prospectus supplement relating to such debt securities.

Ownership of beneficial interests in a registered global security will be limited to persons that have accounts with the depositary for such registered global security (participants) or persons that may hold interests through participants. Upon the issuance of a registered global

- 35 -

Table of Contents

security, the depositary will credit, on its book-entry registration and transfer system, the participants accounts with the principal amounts of the debt securities represented by the registered global security beneficially owned by such participants. Ownership of beneficial interests in such registered global security will be shown on, and the transfer of such ownership interests will be effected, only through records maintained by the depositary for such registered global security or on the records of participants for interests of persons holding through participants.

So long as the depositary for a registered global security, or its nominee, is the registered owner of a registered global security, the depositary or the nominee will be considered the sole owner or holder of the debt securities represented by the registered global security for all purposes. Except as set forth below, owners of beneficial interests in a registered global security will not:

be entitled to have the debt securities represented by such registered global security registered in their names;

receive or be entitled to receive physical delivery of such debt securities in definitive forms; or

be considered the owners of record or holders of the debt securities.

Each person owning a beneficial interest in a registered global security will have to rely on the procedures of the depositary for such registered global security and, if such person is not a participant, on the procedures of the participant through which such person owns its interest, to exercise any rights of a holder under the applicable indenture. We understand that under existing industry practices, if we were to request any action of holders, or if an owner of a beneficial interest in a registered global security desired to take any action that a holder is entitled to take under the applicable indenture, the depositary would authorize the participants holding the relevant beneficial interests to take such action, and such participants would authorize beneficial owners owning through such participants to take such action.

Principal of, interest and premium, if any, on debt securities represented by a registered global security registered in the name of a depositary or its nominee will be made to such depositary or its nominee, as the case may be, as the registered owner of such registered global security. Neither we nor the trustee will have any responsibility or liability for any aspect of the records relating to or payments made on account of beneficial ownership interests in such registered global security.

We expect that the depositary for any debt securities represented by a registered global security, upon receipt of any payment of principal, interest or premium, if any, will immediately credit participants—accounts with such payments in amounts proportionate to their respective beneficial interests in such registered global security as shown on the records of such depositary. We also expect that payments by participants to owners of beneficial interests in such a registered global security held by the participants will be governed by standing customer instructions and customary practices, as is now the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in—street name.

If the depositary notifies us that it is unwilling or unable to continue as depositary for the global security or if at any time the depositary ceases to be a clearing agency registered under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, if so required by applicable law or regulation, and, in either case, we do not appoint a successor depositary within 90 days, we will issue debt securities in certificated form in exchange for the global security. In addition, we may at any time in our sole discretion decide not to have any debt securities represented by a global security. In such event we will issue debt securities in certificated form in exchange for the global security. The debt securities in certificated form will be in the same minimal denominations and be of the same aggregate principal amount and tenor as the portion of each global security to be exchanged.

Any debt securities issued in certificated form in exchange for a global security will be registered in such name or names as the depositary shall instruct the relevant trustee. We expect that such instructions will be based upon directions received by the depositary from participants with respect to ownership of beneficial interests in such registered global security.

If provided in a prospectus supplement relating to a series of debt securities, the debt securities of that series also may be issued in the form of one or more global securities that will be deposited with a common depositary identified in the prospectus supplement. The specific terms and procedures, including the specific terms of the depositary arrangement, with respect to any portion of a series of debt securities to be represented by a global security will be described in the prospectus supplement relating to that series.

Particular Terms of the Senior Debt Securities

Ranking of Senior Debt Securities. The senior debt securities will constitute part of our senior debt and rank equally with all our other senior debt that is unsecured (and will effectively rank junior to any secured debt). The senior debt securities will be senior to our senior subordinated debt and subordinated debt (whether issued to a trust or otherwise.)

Events of Default. The following are events of default under a series of senior debt securities:

we fail to pay the principal, premium, if any, or any sinking fund payment on any senior debt securities of that series when due;

we fail to pay interest on any senior debt securities of that series when due and that failure continues for a period of 30 days;

we fail to observe or perform any other covenant, representation, warranty or other agreement in the senior indenture applicable to that series and that failure continues for 60 days after we receive notice to comply from the trustee or holders of at least 25% in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding senior debt securities of that series; and

certain events of bankruptcy or insolvency occur, whether voluntary or not.

The prospectus supplement relating to a series of debt securities may describe additional or different events of default that apply to that series. An event of default with respect to one series of senior debt securities will not necessarily constitute an event of default with respect to any other series of senior debt securities.

- 37 -

Table of Contents

If a default or an event of default occurs and is continuing, and if a responsible officer of the trustee under the indenture has actual knowledge thereof, the trustee will mail to the holders of senior debt securities of the affected series a notice to that effect within 90 days after the default occurs. Except in the case of a default in the payment of principal or interest, the trustee under the senior indenture may withhold notice if and so long as a committee of the trustee s responsible officers in good faith determines that withholding the notice is in the interests of the holders.

If an event of default with respect to a series of senior debt securities occurs and is continuing, the trustee or the holders of at least 25% in aggregate principal amount of the then outstanding senior debt securities of that series may declare the principal of, accrued and unpaid interest or premium, if any, of all the senior debt securities of that series to be immediately due and payable. The holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the then outstanding senior debt securities of each series covered by such declaration may annul or rescind the declaration and any related payment default that resulted from the declaration but not any other payment default. Certain events of bankruptcy and insolvency will result in all outstanding series of senior debt securities becoming due and payable immediately without any further action on the part of the trustee or the holders.

The senior indenture entitles the trustee to be indemnified by the holders before proceeding to exercise any right or power at the request of any of the holders.

The holders of a majority in principal amount of the outstanding senior debt securities of a series with respect to which an event of default occurs and is continuing may direct the time, method and place of conducting any proceeding for any remedy available to the trustee or exercising any trust power conferred on it, except that:

the direction cannot conflict with any law or regulation or the indenture;

the trustee may take any other action deemed proper by the trustee that is not inconsistent with the direction; and

the trustee need not take any action that might subject it to personal liability or be unduly prejudicial to the holders of the senior debt securities not joining in the action.

A holder may pursue a remedy directly under the senior indenture or a particular series of senior debt securities but, before doing so, the following must occur:

the holder must give to the trustee written notice that an event of default has occurred and is continuing;

the holders of at least 25% in principal amount of the then outstanding senior debt securities of such series must make a written request to the trustee to pursue the remedy;

- 38 -

Table of Contents

the holder, or holders, must offer and, if requested, provide to the trustee an indemnity satisfactory to the trustee against any loss, liability or expense from the taking of the action;

the trustee does not comply with the request within 30 days after receipt of the request and offer and, if requested, the provision of indemnity; and

during the 30 day period, the holders of a majority in principal amount of the then outstanding senior debt securities of such series do not give the trustee a direction inconsistent with the written request.

However, holders have an absolute right to receipt of principal, interest or premium, if any, on or after the respective due dates and to institute suit for the enforcement of those payments. The right of a holder of senior debt securities to bring suit for the enforcement of any payments of principal, interest or premium, if any, on senior debt securities on or after the respective due dates may not be impaired or affected without the consent of that holder.

The holders of a majority in principal amount of the then outstanding senior debt securities of a series may by notice to the trustee on behalf of all holders of the senior debt securities of such series waive any past defaults, except:

a continuing default in payment of the principal of, interest or premium, if any, on, or any sinking fund payment on, senior debt securities of the series; and

a continuing default in respect of a covenant or provision of the indenture that cannot be amended or modified without the consent of each holder of senior debt securities affected.

We periodically will file statements with the trustees regarding our compliance with covenants in the senior indenture.

Modifications and Amendments. Except as provided below, or more fully specified in the senior indenture and described in the prospectus supplement relating to a series of senior debt securities, the senior indenture may be amended or supplemented by us and the trustee with the consent of holders of a majority in principal amount of each series of senior debt securities affected by the amendment or supplement, treating each series as a separate class. In addition, the record holders of a majority in principal amount of the outstanding senior debt securities of each series affected by the waiver, treating such series as separate classes, may, with respect to such series, waive defaults under, or compliance with, the provisions of the senior indenture. However, some amendments or waivers require the consent of each holder of any senior debt security affected. Without the consent of each affected holder, an amendment or waiver may not:

reduce the principal amount of the senior debt securities of any series whose holders must consent to an amendment, supplement or waiver:

reduce the principal or change the fixed maturity of the principal of, premium, if any, or mandatory sinking fund obligation, if any, of any senior debt securities of any series or alter the provisions with respect to the redemption of the senior debt securities;

Table of Contents

reduce the rate, or change the time for payment, of interest, including default interest, on any senior debt security of any series;

impair the right, if any, to convert the senior debt securities into common stock;

waive a default or event of default in the payment of principal of, interest or premium on, the senior debt securities of any series, except a rescission of acceleration of the senior debt securities by the holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the senior debt securities of any series and a waiver of the payment default that resulted from that acceleration;

make any senior debt security of any series payable in currency other than that stated in the senior debt securities of that series;

make any change in the provisions of the senior indenture relating to waivers of past defaults or the rights of the holders of senior debt securities to receive payments of principal of, interest or premium, if any, on the senior debt securities;

waive a redemption payment with respect to any senior debt security;

make any change in the right of any holders of senior debt securities regarding waivers of defaults or impair or affect the right of any holder of a senior debt security of any series to receive payment of principal, interest or premium, if any, on that security on or after the due date expressed in that security or to bring suit for the enforcement of any payment on or after the due date; or

make any change in the above amendment and waiver provisions.

We and the trustee under the senior indenture may amend or supplement the senior indenture or the senior debt securities of any series issued thereunder without the consent of any holder:

to evidence the succession of another person to us, or successive successions, and the assumption by the successors of our covenants, agreements and obligations under the indenture as permitted by the indenture;

to add other covenants, restrictions or conditions for the protection of the holders of any series of senior debt securities;

to add events of default;

to provide for the issuance of senior debt securities in coupon form and to provide for exchangeability of those senior debt securities under the indenture in fully registered form;

to provide for the issuance of and to establish the form, terms and conditions of senior debt securities of any series;

to evidence and provide for the acceptance of appointment by a successor trustee and to add or change any of the provisions of the indenture necessary to provide for or facilitate the administration of the trusts under the indenture by more than one trustee;

- 40 -

to cure any ambiguity, or to correct or supplement any provision in the indenture that may be defective or inconsistent with any other provision contained in the indenture or in any supplemental indenture, or to make any other provisions with respect to matters or questions arising under that indenture, so long as the interests of holders of senior debt securities of any series are not adversely affected in any material respect under that indenture; or

to comply with the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission or to effect or maintain the qualification of the indenture under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939.

Particular Terms of the Senior Subordinated Debt Securities

Ranking of Senior Subordinated Debt Securities. As described below, the senior subordinated debt securities will rank senior to any subordinated debt securities and (whether issued to a trust or otherwise) will be subordinated and junior in right of payment to any senior debt securities issued by us, as well as certain other indebtedness incurred by us to the extent set forth in the applicable indenture and described in the prospectus supplement relating to a series of senior subordinated debt securities.

Subordination. Unless the prospectus supplement relating to a series of senior subordinated debt securities indicates otherwise, the following provisions will apply to our senior subordinated debt securities. Our obligations under the senior subordinated debt securities will be subordinated in right of payment to our obligations under our senior debt and will be structurally subordinated to certain obligations of our subsidiaries, as described above. In the indenture relating to the senior subordinated securities, we will agree not to create, incur or otherwise be liable for any other indebtedness that ranks junior to the senior debt in right of payment, but senior to the senior subordinated securities. For this purpose, senior debt generally includes any indebtedness that does not expressly provide that it is on a parity with or subordinated in right of payment to the senior subordinated debt securities. Specifically, senior debt includes obligations under any credit facility with banks or other institutional lenders and obligations under the senior debt securities described in this prospectus. Senior debt will not include:

any liability for federal, state, local or other taxes;
any indebtedness to any of our subsidiaries or other affiliates;
any trade payables;
any indebtedness that we may incur in violation of the senior subordinated indenture; or obligations under any subordinated debt securities.

Table of Contents

If we distribute our assets to creditors upon any dissolution, winding-up, liquidation or reorganization or in bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar proceedings, we must first pay all amounts due or to become due on all senior debt before we pay the principal of, or any interest or premium on, the senior subordinated debt securities.

We may not make any payment on the senior subordinated debt securities if a default in the payment of the principal, interest or premium, if any, or other obligations, including a default under any repurchase or redemption obligation in respect of designated senior debt, occurs and continues beyond any applicable grace period. We may not make any payment on the senior subordinated debt securities if any other default occurs and continues with respect to designated senior debt that permits holders of the designated senior debt to accelerate its maturity and the trustee receives a notice of default from us or any other person permitted to give notice. We may not resume payments on the senior subordinated debt securities until the defaults are cured or specified time periods pass, unless the maturity of the senior debt is actually accelerated.

The term designated senior debt means our obligations under our principal bank or other institutional credit facility and any other debt expressly designated as senior debt with respect to the applicable senior subordinated debt securities.

We expect that the terms of some of our senior debt will provide that an event of default under the senior subordinated debt securities or an acceleration of their maturity will constitute an event of default under the senior debt. In that case, if the maturity of the senior subordinated debt securities is accelerated because of an event of default, we may not make any payment on the senior subordinated debt securities until we have paid all senior debt or the acceleration has been rescinded. If the payment of the senior subordinated debt securities is accelerated because of an event of default, we must promptly notify the holders of senior debt of the acceleration.

If we experience a bankruptcy, dissolution or reorganization, holders of senior debt may receive more, ratably, and holders of the senior subordinated debt securities may receive less, ratably, than our other creditors.

The indenture for senior subordinated debt securities may not limit our ability to incur additional senior debt.

The subordination provisions may not be amended in a manner adverse to the holders of the senior subordinated debt securities without the consent of the holders of at least 25% of the aggregate principal amount of senior subordinated debt securities then outstanding affected by the amendment, voting as a single class.

Events of Default. The following are events of default under a series of senior subordinated debt securities:

we fail to pay the principal, premium, if any, or any sinking fund payment on any senior subordinated debt securities of that series when due:

we fail to pay interest on any senior subordinated debt securities of that series when due and that failure continues for a period of 30 days;

- 42 -

Table of Contents

we fail to observe or perform any other covenant, representation, warranty or other agreement in the senior subordinated indenture applicable to that series and that failure continues for 60 days after we receive notice to comply from the trustee or holders of at least 25% in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding senior subordinated debt securities of that series; and

certain events of bankruptcy or insolvency occur, whether voluntary or not.

The prospectus supplement relating to a series of senior subordinated debt securities may describe additional or different events of default that apply to that series. An event of default with respect to one series of senior subordinated debt securities will not necessarily constitute an event of default with respect to any other series of senior subordinated debt securities.

If a default or an event of default occurs and is continuing, and if a responsible officer of the trustee under the indenture has actual knowledge thereof, the trustee will mail to the holders of senior subordinated debt securities of the affected series a notice to that effect within 90 days after the default occurs. Except in the case of a default in the payment of principal or interest, the trustee under the senior subordinated indenture may withhold notice if and so long as a committee of the trustee s responsible officers in good faith determines that withholding the notice is in the interests of the holders.

If an event of default with respect to a series of senior subordinated debt securities occurs and is continuing, the trustee or the holders of at least 25% in aggregate principal amount of the then outstanding senior subordinated debt securities of that series may declare the principal of, accrued and unpaid interest and premium, if any, (subject to applicable subordination provisions in the senior subordinated indenture) of all the senior subordinated debt securities of that series to be immediately due and payable. The holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the then outstanding senior subordinated debt securities of each series covered by such declaration may annul and rescind the declaration and any related payment default that resulted from the declaration but not any other payment default. Certain events of bankruptcy and insolvency will result in all outstanding series of senior subordinated debt securities becoming due and payable immediately without any further action on the part of the trustee or the holders.

The senior subordinated indenture entitles the trustee to be indemnified by the holders before proceeding to exercise any right or power at the request of any of the holders.

The holders of a majority in principal amount of the outstanding senior subordinated debt securities of a series with respect to which an event of default occurs and is continuing may direct the time, method and place of conducting any proceeding for any remedy available to the trustee or exercising any trust power conferred on it, except that:

the direction cannot conflict with any law or regulation or the indenture;

the trustee may take any other action deemed proper by the trustee that is not inconsistent with the direction; and

- 43 -

Table of Contents

the trustee need not take any action that might subject it to personal liability or be unduly prejudicial to the holders of the senior subordinated debt securities not joining in the action.

A holder may pursue a remedy directly under the senior subordinated indenture or a particular series of senior subordinated debt securities but, before doing so, the following must occur:

the holder must give to the trustee written notice that an event of default has occurred and is continuing;

the holders of at least 25% in principal amount of the then outstanding senior subordinated debt securities of such series must make a written request to the trustee to pursue the remedy;

the holder, or holders, must offer and, if requested, provide to the trustee an indemnity satisfactory to the trustee against any loss, liability or expense from the taking of the action;

the trustee does not comply with the request within 30 days after receipt of the request and offer and, if requested, the provision of indemnity; and

during the 30 day period, the holders of a majority in principal amount of the then outstanding senior subordinated debt securities of such series do not give the trustee a direction inconsistent with the written request.

However, holders have an absolute right to receipt of principal, interest or premium, if any, on or after the respective due dates and to institute suit for the enforcement of those payments. The right of a holder of senior subordinated debt securities to bring suit for the enforcement of any payments of principal, interest or premium, if any, on senior subordinated debt securities on or after the respective due dates, without regard to acceleration or default, may not be impaired or affected without the consent of that holder.

The holders of a majority in principal amount of the then outstanding senior subordinated debt securities of a series may by notice to the trustee on behalf of all holders of the senior subordinated debt securities of such series waive any past defaults, except:

a continuing default in payment of the principal of, interest or premium, if any, on, or any sinking fund payment on, senior subordinated debt securities of the series; and

a continuing default in respect of a covenant or provision of the indenture that cannot be amended or modified without the consent of each holder of senior subordinated debt securities affected.

We periodically will file statements with the trustees regarding our compliance with covenants in the senior subordinated indenture.

Modifications and Amendments. Except as provided below, or more fully specified in the senior subordinated indenture and described in the prospectus supplement relating to a series of senior subordinated debt securities, the senior subordinated indenture may be amended or supplemented by us and the trustee with the consent of holders of a majority in principal amount of each series of senior subordinated debt securities affected by the amendment or supplement, treating each series as a separate class. In addition, the record holders of a majority in principal amount of the outstanding senior subordinated debt securities of each series affected by the waiver, treating such series as separate classes, may, with respect to such series, waive defaults under, or compliance with, the provisions of the senior subordinated indenture. However, some amendments or waivers require the consent of each holder of any senior subordinated debt security affected. Without the consent of each affected holder, an amendment or waiver may not:

reduce the principal amount of the senior subordinated debt securities of any series whose holders must consent to an amendment, supplement or waiver;

reduce the principal or change the fixed maturity of the principal of, premium, if any, or mandatory sinking fund obligation, if any, of any senior subordinated debt securities of any series or alter the provisions with respect to the redemption of the senior subordinated debt securities;

reduce the rate, or change the time for payment, of interest, including default interest, on any senior subordinated debt security of any series;

impair any right, if any, to convert the senior subordinated debt securities into common stock;

waive a default or event of default in the payment of principal of, or interest or premium on, the senior subordinated debt securities of any series, except a rescission of acceleration of the senior subordinated debt securities by the holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the senior subordinated debt securities of any series and a waiver of the payment default that resulted from that acceleration;

make any senior subordinated debt security of any series payable in currency other than that stated in the senior subordinated debt securities of that series;

make any change in the provisions of the senior subordinated indenture relating to waivers of past defaults or the rights of the holders of senior subordinated debt securities to receive payments of principal of, interest or premium, if any, on the senior subordinated debt securities:

waive a redemption payment with respect to any senior subordinated debt security;

make any change in the right of any holders of senior subordinated debt securities regarding waivers of defaults or impair or affect the right of any holder of a senior subordinated debt security of any series to receive payment of principal, interest and premium, if any, on that security on or after the due date expressed, without regard to acceleration or default, in that security or to bring suit for the enforcement of any payment on or after the due date; or

Table of Contents

make any change in the above amendment and waiver provisions.

We and the trustee under the senior subordinated indenture may amend or supplement the senior subordinated indenture or the senior subordinated debt securities of any series issued thereunder without the consent of any holder:

to evidence the succession of another person to us, or successive successions, and the assumption by the successors of our covenants, agreements and obligations under the senior subordinated indenture as permitted;

to add other covenants, restrictions or conditions for the protection of the holders of any series of senior subordinated debt securities;

to add events of default;

to provide for the issuance of senior subordinated debt securities in coupon form and to provide for exchangeability of those senior subordinated debt securities under the indenture in fully registered form;

to provide for the issuance of and to establish the form, terms and conditions of senior subordinated debt securities of any series;

to evidence and provide for the acceptance of appointment by a successor trustee and to add or change any of the provisions of the indenture necessary to provide for or facilitate the administration of the trusts under the indenture by more than one trustee;

to cure any ambiguity, or to correct or supplement any provision in the indenture that may be defective or inconsistent with any other provision contained in the indenture or in any supplemental indenture, or to make any other provisions with respect to matters or questions arising under that indenture, so long as the interests of holders of senior subordinated debt securities of any series are not adversely affected in any material respect under that indenture; or

to comply with the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission or to effect or maintain the qualification of the indenture under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939.

Particular Terms of the Subordinated Debt Securities

Ranking of Subordinated Debt Securities. The subordinated debt securities (whether issued to a trust or otherwise) will be subordinated and junior in right of payment to any senior debt securities and senior subordinated debt securities issued by us, as well as certain other indebtedness incurred by us to the extent set forth in the applicable indenture described in the prospectus supplement relating to a series of subordinated debt securities.

Subordination. Unless the prospectus supplement relating to a series of subordinated debt securities indicates otherwise, the subordination provisions of the subordinated debt

Table of Contents

securities will be the same as those of the senior subordinated debt securities just described, except that senior debt will include our obligations under the senior subordinated debt securities, as well as under the other debt specified above and any other indebtedness that the applicable series of subordinated debt is expressly junior to, as set forth in the prospectus supplement.

The subordinated indenture does not limit the amount of additional senior debt that we may incur. We expect from time to time to incur additional indebtedness constituting senior debt.

Events of Default. The following are events of default under a series of subordinated debt securities:

we fail to pay the principal, premium, if any, or any sinking fund payment, on any subordinated debt securities of that series when due;

we fail to pay interest on any subordinated debt securities of that series when due and that failure continues for a period of 30 days;

we fail to observe or perform any other covenant, representation, warranty or other agreement in the subordinated indenture applicable to that series and that failure continues for 60 days after we receive notice to comply from the trustee or holders of at least 25% in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding subordinated debt securities of that series; and

certain events of bankruptcy or insolvency occur, whether voluntary or not.

The prospectus supplement relating to a series of subordinated debt securities may describe additional or different events of default that apply to that series. An event of default with respect to one series of subordinated debt securities will not necessarily constitute an event of default with respect to any other series of subordinated debt securities.

If a default or an event of default occurs and is continuing, and if a responsible officer of the trustee under the indenture has actual knowledge thereof, the trustee will mail to the holders of subordinated debt securities of the affected series a notice to that effect within 90 days after the default occurs. Except in the case of a default in the payment of principal or interest, the trustee under the subordinated indenture may withhold notice if and so long as a committee of the trustee s responsible officers in good faith determines that withholding the notice is in the interests of the holders.

If an event of default with respect to a series of subordinated debt securities occurs and is continuing, the trustee or the holders of at least 25% in aggregate principal amount of the then outstanding subordinated debt securities of that series may declare the principal of, accrued and unpaid interest and premium, if any, (subject to applicable subordination provisions in the relevant indenture) of all the subordinated debt securities of that series to be immediately due and payable. The holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the then outstanding subordinated debt securities of each series covered by such declaration may annul and rescind the declaration and any related payment default that resulted from the declaration but not any

other payment default. Certain events of bankruptcy and insolvency will result in all outstanding series of subordinated debt securities becoming due and payable immediately without any further action on the part of the trustee or the holders.

The subordinated indenture entitles the trustee to be indemnified by the holders before proceeding to exercise any right or power at the request of any of the holders.

The holders of a majority in principal amount of the outstanding subordinated debt securities of a series with respect to which an event of default occurs and is continuing may direct the time, method and place of conducting any proceeding for any remedy available to the trustee or exercising any trust power conferred on it with respect to that series, except that:

the direction cannot conflict with any law or regulation or the subordinated indenture;

the trustee may take any other action deemed proper by the trustee that is not inconsistent with the direction; and

the trustee need not take any action that might subject it to personal liability or be unduly prejudicial to the holders of the subordinated debt securities not joining in the action.

A holder may pursue a remedy directly under the subordinated indenture or a particular series of subordinated debt securities but, before doing so, the following must occur:

the holder must give to the trustee written notice that an event of default has occurred and is continuing;

the holders of at least 25% in principal amount of the then outstanding subordinated debt securities of such series must make a written request to the trustee to pursue the remedy;

the holder, or holders, must offer and, if requested, provide to the trustee an indemnity satisfactory to the trustee against any loss, liability or expense from the taking of the action;

the trustee does not comply with the request within 30 days after receipt of the request and offer and, if requested, the provision of indemnity; and

during the 30 day period, the holders of a majority in principal amount of the then outstanding subordinated debt securities of such series do not give the trustee a direction inconsistent with the written request.

However, holders have an absolute right to receipt of principal, interest and premium, if any, on or after the respective due dates and to institute suit for the enforcement of those payments. The right of a holder of subordinated debt securities to bring suit for the enforcement of any payments of principal, interest and premium, if any, on subordinated debt securities on or after the respective due dates may not be impaired or affected without the consent of that holder.

- 48 -

Table of Contents

The holders of a majority in principal amount of the then outstanding subordinated debt securities of a series may by notice to the trustee on behalf of all holders of the subordinated debt securities of such series waive any past defaults, except:

a continuing default in payment of the principal of, interest or premium, if any, on, or any sinking fund payment on, subordinated debt securities of the series; and

a continuing default in respect of a covenant or provision of the indenture that cannot be amended or modified without the consent of each holder of each debt securities affected.

We periodically will file statements with the trustee regarding our compliance with covenants in the subordinated indenture.

Modifications and Amendments. Except as provided below, or more fully specified in the subordinated indenture and described in the prospectus supplement relating to a series of subordinated debt securities, the subordinated indenture may be amended or supplemented by us and the trustee with the consent of holders of a majority in principal amount of each series of subordinated debt securities affected by the amendment or supplement, that rank equal with each other, treating each such series as a separate class. In addition, the record holders of a majority in principal amount of the outstanding subordinated debt securities of each series affected by the waiver treating such series as separate classes, may, with respect to those series, waive defaults under, or compliance with, the provisions of the subordinated indenture. However, some amendments or waivers require the consent of each holder of any subordinated debt security affected. Without the consent of each affected holder, an amendment or waiver may not:

reduce the principal amount of the subordinated debt securities of any series whose holders must consent to an amendment, supplement or waiver;

reduce the principal or change the fixed maturity of the principal of, premium, if any, or mandatory sinking fund obligation if any, of any subordinated debt securities of any series or alter the provisions with respect to the redemption of the subordinated debt securities;

reduce the rate, or change the time for payment, of interest, including default interest, on any subordinated debt security of any series;

impair the right, if any, to convert the subordinated debt securities into common stock;

waive a default or event of default in the payment of principal of, or interest or premium on, the subordinated debt securities of any series, except a rescission of acceleration of the subordinated debt securities by the holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the subordinated debt securities of any series and a waiver of the payment default that resulted from that acceleration;

make any subordinated debt security of any series payable in currency other than that stated in the debt securities of that series;

- 49 -

Table of Contents

make any change in the provisions of the subordinated indenture relating to waivers of past defaults or the rights of the holders of subordinated debt securities to receive payments of principal of, interest or premium, if any, on the subordinated debt securities;

waive a redemption payment with respect to any subordinated debt security;

make any change in the right of any holders of subordinated debt securities regarding waivers of defaults or impair or affect the right of any holder of a subordinated debt security of any series to receive payment of principal, interest or premium, if any, on that security on or after the due date expressed in that security or to bring suit for the enforcement of any payment on or after the due date; or

make any change in the above amendment and waiver provisions.

We and the trustee under the subordinated indenture may amend or supplement the indenture or the debt securities issued thereunder without the consent of any holder:

to evidence the succession of another person to us, or successive successions, and the assumption by the successors of our covenants, agreements and obligations under the subordinated indenture;

to add other covenants, restrictions or conditions for the protection of the holders of all or any series of subordinated debt securities;

to add events of default;

to provide for the issuance of subordinated debt securities in coupon form and to provide for exchangeability of those subordinated debt securities under the indenture in fully registered form;

to provide for the issuance of and to establish the form, terms and conditions of subordinated debt securities of any series;

to evidence and provide for the acceptance of appointment by a successor trustee and to add or change any of the provisions of the indenture necessary to provide for or facilitate the administration of the trusts under the indenture by more than one trustee;

to cure any ambiguity, or to correct or supplement any provision in the indenture that may be defective or inconsistent with any other provision contained in the indenture or in any supplemental indenture, or to make any other provisions with respect to matters or questions arising under that indenture, so long as the interests of holders of debt securities of any series are not adversely affected in any material respect under that indenture; or

to comply with the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission or to effect or maintain the qualification of the indenture under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939.

Table of Contents

In the case of subordinated debt securities held by either of the trusts, holders of trust preferred securities issued by the trust will also have rights regarding the events of default and waiver or amendment provisions described above. Those rights are described below under Particular Terms of the Subordinated Debt Securities to be issued to Radian Group Capital Trust I and Radian Group Capital Trust II.

Particular Terms of the Subordinated Debt Securities to be Issued to Radian Group Capital Trust I and Radian Group Capital Trust II

We may issue a series of subordinated debt securities in connection with the issuance by a trust of trust preferred securities. These subordinated debt securities will be issued under a trust-issued subordinated indenture between us and one or more of the trusts. Only one series of our subordinated debt securities will be issued to a trust in connection with the issuance of trust preferred securities and trust common securities by that trust. At the time a trust issues trust preferred securities, it will invest the proceeds from the issuance of those securities, together with the consideration paid by us for the related trust common securities, in our subordinated debt securities. The subordinated debt securities held by such trust will be in the principal amount equal to the aggregate stated liquidation amount of the trust preferred securities, plus our concurrent investment in the related trust common securities.

Ranking of Trust-Issued Subordinated Debt Securities. The subordinated debt securities issued to a trust pursuant to a trust-issued subordinated indenture will be subordinated and junior in right of payment to any senior debt securities and senior subordinated debt securities issued by us, as well as certain other indebtedness incurred by us to the extent set forth in the prospectus supplement.

Subordination. Unless the prospectus supplement relating to the issuance of preferred securities by a trust indicates otherwise, the subordination provisions of the subordinated debt securities issued to a trust pursuant to a trust-issued subordinated indenture will be the same as those of the subordinated debt securities described above.

The trust-issued subordinated indenture does not limit the amount of additional senior debt that we may incur. We expect from time to time to incur additional indebtedness constituting senior debt.

Events of Default. In addition to the events of default described above under Particular Terms of the Subordinated Debt Securities, in the event that subordinated debt securities are issued to a trust or a trustee for such trust in connection with the issuance of trust preferred securities and trust common securities by such trust, the voluntary or involuntary dissolution, winding up, or termination of such trust will be an event of default except if effected in connection with a distribution of subordinated debt securities to the holders of trust preferred securities and trust common securities in liquidation of that trust, the redemption of all of the trust preferred securities and trust common securities of such trust or certain mergers, consolidations or amalgamations, each as permitted by the amended and restated trust agreement of such trust.

Table of Contents

If an event of default with respect to a series of subordinated debt securities issued to a trust has occurred and is continuing and such event is attributable to a default in the payment of interest or principal on the related subordinated debt securities on the date such interest or principal is otherwise payable, a holder of trust preferred securities of such trust may institute a legal proceeding directly against us for enforcement of such payment to such holder equal to the liquidation amount of the related trust preferred securities of such holder. We may not amend the applicable trust-issued subordinated indenture to remove the foregoing right to bring a direct action without the prior written consent of the holders of all of the trust preferred securities of such trust. If the right to bring such direct action is removed, the applicable trust may become subject to the reporting obligations under the Exchange Act. We will have the right under the trust-issued subordinated indenture to set off any payment made to such holder of trust preferred securities by us, in connection with a direct action.

The holders of the trust preferred securities would not be able to exercise directly any remedies other than those set forth in the preceding paragraph available to the holders of the subordinated debt securities unless there has been an event of default under the applicable amended and restated trust agreement.

Distribution to Securities Holders. Subordinated debt securities issued to a trust in connection with the issuance of trust preferred securities and trust common securities may be subsequently distributed pro rata to the holders of such trust preferred securities and trust common securities in connection with the dissolution of that trust upon the occurrence of certain events. These events will be described in the prospectus supplement relating to such trust preferred securities and trust common securities.

Modifications and Amendments. In addition to the provisions regarding modification and amendment of the subordinated indentures described above under Particular Terms of the Subordinated Debt Securities, so long as any of the trust preferred securities remain outstanding, with respect to the applicable trust-issued subordinated indenture:

no modification may be made to such indenture that materially and adversely affects the holders of the trust preferred securities without the consent of each holder of the trust preferred securities so affected;

no waiver of any event of default with respect to a series of subordinated debt securities held by a trust may be effective without the consent of holders of a majority of aggregate liquidation amount of the trust preferred securities of such trust then outstanding; and

in the event that a trust holding a series of subordinated debt securities is entitled to accelerate the principal of such series (for which the consent of holders of at least 25% of the principal amount is required), holders of trust preferred securities may participate in such acceleration, substituting for such purpose the liquidation amount of such holders for an equivalent amount of principal of the relevant series of subordinated debt securities.

- 52 -

Covenants Applicable to Subordinated Debt Securities Issued to a Trust. We will covenant that if:

- (a) there shall have occurred and be continuing any event of default with respect to a series of subordinated debt securities issued to a trust;
- (b) we shall be in default with respect to our payment of obligations under the trust preferred securities guarantee relating to such trust preferred securities; or
- (c) we shall have begun, or given notice of our election to begin, an extension period with respect to a series of subordinated debt securities issued to a trust and shall not have rescinded such notice or terminated such period;

then, as to each series of our subordinated debt securities issued to a trust in connection with the issuance of trust preferred securities and trust common securities by that trust, we will not:

declare or pay any dividends or distributions on, or redeem, purchase, acquire or make a liquidation payment with respect to, any of our outstanding capital stock other than:

dividends or distributions in our common stock;

redemptions or purchases of any rights outstanding under any stockholder rights plan of ours, or the declaration of a dividend of such rights or the issuance of stock under such plan in the future;

purchases of common stock related to the issuance of common stock under any of our benefit plans for our directors, officers or employees; or

make any payment of principal of, interest or premium, if any, on or repay, repurchase or redeem any debt security of ours that ranks equal with or junior in interest to the subordinated debt securities of such series or make any guarantee payments with respect to any guarantee by us of the debt securities of any subsidiary of ours if such guarantee ranks junior in interest to the corresponding subordinated debt securities, other than payments under any trust preferred securities guarantee of ours.

If our subordinated debt securities are issued to a trust in connection with the issuance of trust preferred securities and common securities of such trust, for so long as such series of subordinated debt securities remain outstanding, we also will covenant:

to maintain directly or indirectly 100% ownership of the common securities of such trust, except that any permitted successor of ours under the applicable trust-issued subordinated indenture may succeed to our ownership of such common securities;

not to voluntarily dissolve, wind-up or liquidate such trust, except in connection with the distribution of our subordinated debt securities to the holders of trust preferred securities and trust common securities in liquidation of such trust, the redemption of all of the trust preferred securities and trust common securities of such trust, or certain mergers, consolidations or amalgamations, each as permitted by the amended and restated trust agreement of such trust; and

- 53 -

Table of Contents

to use our reasonable efforts, consistent with the terms of the related trust agreement, to cause such trust to remain classified as a grantor trust for United States Federal income tax purposes.

Certain Other Provisions Relating to the Trust Preferred Securities. Except as otherwise provided in the prospectus supplement relating to a particular issuance, in the case of any series of subordinated debt securities issued to a trust, if an Investment Company Event or a Tax Event (in each case as defined below) occurs and is continuing, we may, at our option, redeem such series of subordinated debt securities, in whole but not in part, at any time within 90 days of the occurrence of such special event, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of such subordinated debt securities then outstanding plus accrued and unpaid interest to the date fixed for redemption.

For purposes of the trust-issued subordinated indenture, Investment Company Event means, in respect of a trust, the receipt by such trust of an opinion of counsel experienced in such matters to the effect that, as a result of the occurrence of a change in law or regulation or a change in the interpretation or application of law or regulation by any legislative body, court or governmental agency or regulatory authority, such trust is or will be considered an investment company that is required to be registered under the Investment Company Act, which change becomes effective on or after the date of original issuance of the preferred securities of such trust.

For purposes of the trust-issued subordinated indenture, Tax Event means, in respect of a trust, the receipt by such trust or us of an opinion of counsel experienced in such matters to the effect that, as a result of an amendment to, or change, including any announced prospective change, in the laws of the United States or any political subdivision or taxing authority thereof or therein, or as a result of any official administrative pronouncement or judicial decision interpreting or applying such laws or regulations, which amendment or change is effective or which pronouncement or decision is announced on or after the date of original issuance of the preferred securities of such trust, there is more than an insubstantial risk that:

such trust is, or within 90 days of the date of such opinion will be, subject to United States Federal income tax with respect to income received or accrued on the corresponding series of subordinated debt securities;

interest payable by us on such subordinated debt securities is not, or within 90 days of the date of such opinion will not be, deductible by us, in whole or in part, for United States Federal income tax purposes; or

such trust is, or within 90 days of the date of such opinion will be, subject to more than a de minimus amount of other taxes, duties or other governmental charges.

Unless the prospectus supplement and supplemental indenture relating to such securities provide otherwise, we will have the right under the trust-issued subordinated indenture to defer payments of interest on the subordinated debt securities by extending the interest payment period from time to time. If we defer payments of interest, the trust will defer distributions on the trust preferred securities during the deferral period.

- 54 -

DESCRIPTION OF UNITS

We may issue units consisting of common stock, preferred stock, debt securities or any combination of those securities. The prospectus supplement relating to such units will describe their terms, including the following:

the terms of each of the securities included in the units, including whether and under what circumstances the securities included in the units may or may not be traded separately;

the terms of any unit agreement governing the units;

if applicable, a discussion of certain United States federal income tax considerations; and

the provisions for the payment, settlement, transfer or exchange of the units.

DESCRIPTION OF TRUST PREFERRED SECURITIES

Each trust will be governed by the terms of the agreement under which the applicable trust is organized, which will be replaced by an amended and restated trust agreement substantially in the form filed as an exhibit to the registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part, entered into at the time of any offering of trust preferred securities. The trusts may issue trust preferred securities with the terms set forth in the amended and restated trust agreement and described in the prospectus supplement relating to such securities. These terms will mirror the terms of the subordinated debt securities purchased by the trust using the proceeds from the sale of its trust preferred securities and the proceeds from its issuance to us of trust common securities. The subordinated debt securities issued to a trust are referred to as the corresponding subordinated debt securities relating to such trust. If we fail to make a payment on those corresponding subordinated debt securities, the applicable trust will not have sufficient funds to make distributions on the trust preferred securities.

The following summary sets forth the material terms and provisions of each amended and restated trust agreement and the trust preferred securities. Because this summary is not complete, you should refer to the form of amended and restated trust agreement for complete information regarding the terms and provisions of that agreement and of the trust preferred securities, including the definitions of some of the terms used below. The form of amended and restated trust agreement filed as an exhibit to the registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part is incorporated by reference into this summary. Whenever particular sections or defined terms of an amended and restated trust agreement are referred to, such sections or defined terms are incorporated herein by reference, and the statement in connection with which such reference is made is qualified in its entirety by such reference.

Issuance, Status and Guarantee of Trust Preferred Securities

Under the terms of the amended and restated trust agreement for each trust, the administrative trustees will issue the trust preferred securities on behalf of the trust. The trust preferred securities will represent preferred beneficial interests in the assets of the trust and the holders of the trust preferred securities will be entitled to a preference in certain circumstances as regards distributions and amounts payable on redemption or liquidation over the holders of trust common securities of the trust, as well as other benefits under the corresponding amended and restated trust agreement. Except in those specified circumstances in which the trust preferred securities have preference over the trust common securities, the trust preferred securities of each trust will rank equally with, and payments will be made on the trust preferred securities pro rata with, the trust common securities of the trust. The property trustee will hold legal title to the corresponding subordinated debt securities in trust for the benefit of the holders of the related trust preferred securities and trust common securities. The trust preferred securities and trust common securities of each trust collectively are referred to as the trust securities of the trust.

We will issue a guarantee agreement for the benefit of the holders of each trust strust preferred securities. Under such trust preferred securities guarantee, we will guarantee on a subordinated basis the payment of distributions on the related trust preferred securities and amounts payable on redemption or liquidation of such trust preferred securities, but only to the extent that the related trust has funds on hand to make such payments. See Description of Trust Preferred Securities Guarantees.

Distributions

Distributions on the trust preferred securities will be cumulative, will accumulate from the original issue date and will be payable on the dates as specified in the prospectus supplement relating to such securities. If any date on which distributions are payable on the trust preferred securities is not a Business Day, payment of the distribution payable on such date will be made on the next succeeding day that is a Business Day and without any additional distributions or other payment in respect of any such delay, except that, if such Business Day is in the next succeeding calendar year, payment of such distribution shall be made on the immediately preceding Business Day, in each case with the same force and effect as if made on the date such payment originally was payable. A Business Day is any day other than a Saturday or a Sunday, or a day on which banking institutions in the City of New York are authorized or required by law or executive order to remain closed or a day on which the principal corporate trust office of the property trustee or the trustee for the corresponding subordinated debt securities is closed for business.

Distributions on each trust preferred security will be payable at a rate specified in the prospectus supplement relating to such securities. Distributions to which holders of trust preferred securities that are not paid when due are entitled will accumulate additional distributions at the rate per annum, if any, specified in the prospectus supplement relating to such securities. References to distributions include any such additional distributions unless otherwise stated.

Table of Contents

If provided in the applicable prospectus supplement relating to such securities, we have the right under the subordinated indenture to defer the payment of interest at any time or from time to time on any series of corresponding subordinated debt securities for an Extension Period that will be specified in the prospectus supplement relating to such securities. As a consequence of any such extension, distributions on the corresponding trust preferred securities would be deferred, but would continue to accumulate additional distributions at the rate per annum set forth in the prospectus supplement for such trust preferred securities.

The funds of each trust available for distribution to holders of its trust preferred securities will be limited to payments under the corresponding subordinated debt securities in which the trust will invest the proceeds from the issuance and sale of its trust preferred securities and trust common securities. If we do not make interest payments on those corresponding subordinated debt securities, the property trustee will not have funds available to pay distributions on the related trust preferred securities. The payment of distributions, if and to the extent the trust has funds legally available for the payment of such distributions and cash sufficient to make such payments, is guaranteed by us on a limited basis as set forth herein under Description of Trust Preferred Securities Guarantees.

Distributions on the trust preferred securities will be payable to the holders thereof as they appear on the register of the trust on the relevant record dates. As long as the trust preferred securities remain in book-entry form, the record dates will be one Business Day prior to the relevant distribution dates. If any trust preferred securities are not in book-entry form, the relevant record date for trust preferred securities of such series will be the date at least 15 days prior to the relevant distribution date, as specified in the prospectus supplement relating to such securities.

Redemption

Upon any repayment or redemption, in whole or in part, of any corresponding subordinated debt securities held by a trust, whether at stated maturity, upon earlier redemption or otherwise, the proceeds from such repayment or redemption shall be simultaneously applied by the property trustee, upon not less than 30 nor more than 60 days notice to holders of trust securities, to redeem, on a pro rata basis, trust preferred securities and trust common securities having an aggregate stated liquidation amount equal to the aggregate principal amount of the corresponding subordinated debt securities so repaid or redeemed. The redemption price per trust security will be equal to the stated liquidation amount thereof plus accumulated and unpaid distributions thereon to the date of redemption, plus the related amount of premium, if any, specified in the applicable prospectus supplement and any additional amounts paid by us upon the concurrent repayment or redemption of the corresponding subordinated debt securities. If less than all of any series of corresponding subordinated debt securities are to be repaid or redeemed on a redemption date, then the proceeds from such repayment or redemption shall be allocated pro rata to the redemption of the related trust preferred securities and trust common securities.

- 57 -

Redemption Procedures

Trust preferred securities redeemed on each redemption date will be redeemed at the redemption price with the applicable proceeds from the contemporaneous redemption of the corresponding subordinated debt securities. Redemptions of the trust preferred securities will be made and the redemption price will be payable on each redemption date only to the extent that the related trust has funds on hand available for the payment of such redemption price.

Notice of any redemption will be mailed at least 30 days but not more than 60 days before the redemption date to each holder of trust preferred securities to be redeemed at its registered address. Unless we default in payment of the redemption price on the corresponding subordinated debt securities, on and after the redemption date interest will cease to accrue on such subordinated debt securities or portions thereof called for redemption and distributions will cease to accrue on the related trust preferred securities or portions thereof.

If a trust gives a notice of redemption, which notice will be irrevocable, in respect of its trust preferred securities, then by 12:00 noon, New York City time, on the redemption date, to the extent funds are available, the property trustee will irrevocably deposit with the depositary for the trust preferred securities funds sufficient to pay the applicable redemption price and will give the depositary irrevocable instructions and authority to pay the redemption price to the holders of such trust preferred securities. If such trust preferred securities are no longer in book-entry form, the property trustee, to the extent funds are available, will irrevocably deposit with the paying agent for such trust preferred securities funds sufficient to pay the applicable redemption price and will give such paying agent irrevocable instructions and authority to pay the redemption price to the holders thereof upon surrender of their certificates evidencing such trust preferred securities. Notwithstanding the foregoing, distributions payable on or before the redemption date for any trust preferred securities called for redemption will be payable to the holders of such trust preferred securities on the relevant record dates for the related distribution dates. If notice of redemption has been given and funds deposited as required, then immediately before the close of business on the date of such deposit, all rights of the holders of such trust preferred securities so called for redemption will cease, except the right of the holders of such trust preferred securities to receive the redemption price, but without interest, and such trust preferred securities will cease to be outstanding. If any date on which any redemption price is payable is not a Business Day, then payment of the redemption price payable on such date will be made on the next succeeding day which is a Business Day, and without any interest or other payment in respect of any such delay, except that, if such Business Day falls in the next calendar year, such payment will be made on the immediately preceding Business Day, in each case with the same force and effect as if made on such date. If payment of the redemption price in respect of trust preferred securities called for redemption is improperly withheld or refused and not paid either by the related trust or by us pursuant to the trust preferred securities guarantee as described under Description of Trust Preferred Securities Guarantees, distributions on such trust preferred securities will continue to accumulate at the then applicable rate from the redemption date originally established by the trust for such trust preferred securities to the date such redemption price is actually paid, in which case the actual payment date will be the date fixed for redemption for purposes of calculating the redemption price.

- 58 -

Table of Contents

Subject to applicable law, including, without limitation, United States federal securities law, we or our subsidiaries may at any time and from time to time purchase outstanding trust preferred securities by tender, in the open market or by private agreement.

Payment of the redemption price on the trust preferred securities will be made to the applicable record holders as they appear on the register for such trust preferred securities on the relevant record date, which will be one Business Day prior to the relevant redemption date; provided, however, that if any trust preferred securities are not in book-entry form, the relevant record date for such trust preferred securities will be a date at least 15 days before the redemption date, as specified in the prospectus supplement relating to such securities.

If less than all of the trust preferred securities and trust common securities issued by a trust are to be redeemed on a redemption date, then the aggregate liquidation amount of such trust preferred securities and trust common securities to be redeemed will be allocated pro rata among the trust preferred securities and the common securities based upon the relative liquidation amounts of such classes. The particular trust preferred securities to be redeemed will be selected on a pro rata basis not more than 60 days before the redemption date by the property trustee from the outstanding trust preferred securities not previously called for redemption, or by such other method as the property trustee shall deem fair and appropriate. The property trustee will promptly notify the trust registrar in writing of the trust preferred securities selected for redemption and, in the case of any trust preferred securities selected for partial redemption, the liquidation amount thereof to be redeemed. For all purposes of each amended and restated trust agreement, unless the context otherwise requires, all provisions relating to the redemption of trust preferred securities shall relate, in the case of any trust preferred securities redeemed or to be redeemed only in part, to the portion of the liquidation amount of trust preferred securities which has been or is to be redeemed.

Distribution of Corresponding Subordinated Debt Securities

On and from the date fixed for any distribution of corresponding subordinated debt securities upon dissolution of a trust:

the trust preferred securities will no longer be deemed to be outstanding;

the depositary or its nominee, as the record holder of the applicable trust preferred securities, will receive a registered global certificate or certificates representing the corresponding subordinated debt securities to be delivered upon such distribution; and

any certificates representing such trust preferred securities not held by the depositary or its nominee will be deemed to represent beneficial interests in the corresponding subordinated debt securities having an aggregate principal amount equal to the aggregate stated liquidation amount of such trust preferred securities, and bearing accrued and unpaid interest in an amount equal to the accrued and unpaid distributions on such trust preferred securities until such certificates are presented to the administrative trustees or their agent for transfer or reissuance.

Table of Contents

We cannot predict the market prices for the trust preferred securities or the corresponding subordinated debt securities that may be distributed in exchange for trust preferred securities if a dissolution and liquidation of a trust were to occur. Accordingly, the trust preferred securities that you may purchase, or the corresponding subordinated debt securities that you may receive on dissolution and liquidation of a trust, may trade at a discount to the price that you paid to purchase the trust preferred securities.

Trust Common Securities

In connection with the issuance of trust preferred securities, the applicable trust will issue one series of trust common securities having the terms, including distributions, redemption, voting, liquidation rights or restrictions as will be set forth therein and described in the prospectus supplement relating to such securities. Except for voting rights, the terms of the trust common securities issued by the trust will be substantially identical to the terms of the trust preferred securities. All of the common securities of the trust will be directly or indirectly owned by us. The trust common securities will rank equally, and payments will be made thereon pro rata, with the trust preferred securities, except that, upon an event of default, the rights of the holders of the trust common securities to payment in respect of distributions and payments upon liquidation, redemption and otherwise will be subordinated to the rights of the holders of the trust preferred securities. Except in limited circumstances, we, as the holder of the trust common securities, also will have the exclusive right to vote to appoint, remove or replace any of the trustees of the trust.

Subordination of Trust Common Securities

Payment of distributions on, and the redemption price of, each trust s trust preferred securities and trust common securities, as applicable, will be made pro rata based on the liquidation amount of such trust preferred securities and trust common securities; provided, however, that if on any distribution date or redemption date an event of default under the corresponding subordinated debt securities has occurred and is continuing, no payment of any distribution on, or redemption price of, any of the trust s trust common securities, and no other payment on account of the redemption, liquidation or other acquisition of such trust common securities, may be made unless payment in full in cash of all accumulated and unpaid distributions on all of the trust s outstanding trust preferred securities for all distribution periods terminating on or prior thereto, or in the case of payment of the redemption price the full amount of such redemption price on all of the trust s outstanding trust preferred securities then called for redemption, shall have been made or provided for, and all funds available to the property trustee will first be applied to the payment in full in cash of all distributions on, or redemption price of, the trust s trust preferred securities then due and payable.

In the case of any event of default under the amended and restated trust agreement resulting from an event of default under the corresponding subordinated debt securities, the holder of such trust s trust common securities will have no right to act with respect to any such event of default until the effect of all such events of default with respect to the trust s trust preferred securities has been cured, waived or otherwise eliminated. Until all such events of default under the applicable amended and restated trust agreement with respect to the trust

- 60 -

preferred securities have been so cured, waived or otherwise eliminated, the property trustee shall act solely on behalf of the holders of the trust s trust preferred securities and not on behalf of the holder of the trust s common securities, and only the holders of such trust preferred securities will have the right to direct the property trustee to act on their behalf.

Dissolution

Unless otherwise specified in the prospectus supplement relating to the trust preferred securities, or unless earlier terminated as described below, each trust will be terminated on the expiration of the term of such trust specified in the prospectus supplement.

The first to occur of any of the following events is an early termination:

our bankruptcy, dissolution or liquidation;

our written direction to the property trustee to dissolve the trust and distribute the related subordinated debt securities directly to the holders of the trust preferred securities and trust common securities;

the redemption by the trust of all of the trust preferred securities; and

the entry of a court order for the dissolution of the trust.

Unless otherwise specified in the prospectus supplement relating to such securities, in the event of a termination as described above other than in connection with a redemption, after a trust satisfies all liabilities to its creditors as provided by applicable law, each holder of the trust preferred securities issued by such trust will be entitled to receive:

the related subordinated debt securities in an aggregate principal amount equal to the aggregate liquidation amount of the trust preferred securities held by the holder; or

if any distribution of the subordinated debt securities is determined by the property trustee not to be practical, after satisfaction of liabilities to creditors of the trust as provided by applicable law, an amount equal to the liquidation amount of the trust preferred securities held by the holder, plus accumulated and unpaid distributions to the date of payment.

If the trust cannot pay the full amount due on its trust preferred securities and trust common securities because it has insufficient assets available for payment, then the amounts payable by the trust on its trust preferred securities and trust common securities will be paid on a *pro rata* basis. However, if an event of default under the indenture for the corresponding subordinated debt securities has occurred and is continuing, the trust preferred securities will have priority over the trust common securities.

Events of Default

The following will be events of default under the amended and restated trust agreement:

the occurrence of an event of default under the subordinated indenture for the corresponding subordinated debt securities;

default by the property trustee in the payment of any distribution when it becomes due and payable, and continuation of the default for a period of 30 days;

default by the property trustee in the payment of the redemption price of any trust preferred security or trust common security when it becomes due and payable;

default in the performance, or breach, in any material respect, of any covenant or warranty of the trustees contained in the amended and restated trust agreement, other than a default described above, and continuation of the default or breach for a period of 60 days after the defaulting trustee(s) receives notice from the holders of at least 25% in liquidation amount of the outstanding trust preferred securities specifying the default or breach and requiring it to be remedied;

the occurrence of a bankruptcy event with respect to the property trustee and the failure by us to appoint a successor property trustee within 60 days thereof; or

the occurrence of any other event of default specified in the prospectus supplement relating to the securities issued by the applicable

If an event of default with respect to the corresponding subordinated debt securities occurs and is continuing under the subordinated indenture, then the holders of at least 25% in aggregate liquidation amount of the outstanding trust preferred securities will have the right to declare the principal amount of the corresponding subordinated debt securities immediately due and payable. At any time after a declaration of acceleration has been made with respect to the corresponding subordinated debt securities and before a judgment or decree for payment of the money due has been obtained, the holders of a majority in liquidation amount of the trust preferred securities may rescind or annul any declaration of acceleration with respect to the corresponding subordinated debt securities.

We are required to furnish annually, to the property trustee for the trust, officers certificates to the effect that, to the best knowledge of the individuals providing the certificates, we and the trust are not in default under the amended and restated declaration of trust or, if there has been a default, specifying the default and its status.

Consolidation, Merger or Amalgamation of Each Trust

A trust may not consolidate, amalgamate or merge with or into, or be replaced by, or convey, transfer or lease substantially all of its properties and assets to, any entity, except as described below. A trust may, with the consent of the administrative trustees but without the consent of the holders of the outstanding trust preferred securities or the other trustees of such trust, consolidate or merge with or into, or be replaced by, or convey, transfer or lease its properties and assets substantially as an entirety to, a trust organized under the laws of the District of Columbia or

the successor trust either:

expressly assumes all of the obligations of the trust relating to the trust preferred and trust common securities; or

- 62 -

Table of Contents

substitutes for the trust preferred securities other securities having substantially the same terms as the trust preferred securities, so long as the successor securities rank the same as the trust preferred securities as to distributions and payments upon liquidation, redemption and otherwise;

we appoint a trustee of the successor trust who has substantially the same powers and duties as the property trustee of the trust;

any successor securities are listed or will be listed upon notice of issuance, on the same national securities exchange or other organization on which the trust preferred securities are then listed, if any;

the event does not cause the trust preferred securities or any substituted successor securities to be downgraded by any national rating agency;

the event does not adversely affect the rights, preferences and privileges of the holders of the trust preferred securities or any successor securities in any material respect;

the successor trust has a purpose identical to that of the trust;

before the event, we receive an opinion of counsel from a nationally recognized law firm stating that:

the merger or other event does not adversely affect the rights, preferences and privileges of the holders of the trust preferred securities in any material respect; and

following the merger or other event, neither the trust nor the successor trust will be required to register as an investment company under the Investment Company Act of 1940; and

we own all of the common securities of the successor trust and we guarantee the obligations of the successor trust under the successor securities at least to the extent provided under the trust preferred securities guarantee.

In addition, unless all of the holders of the trust preferred securities approve otherwise, the trust may not consolidate, amalgamate or merge with or into, or be replaced by, or convey, transfer or lease its properties and assets substantially as an entirety to, any other entity, or permit any other entity to consolidate, amalgamate, merge with or into or replace it if the transaction would cause the trust or the successor entity to be taxable as other than as a grantor trust for United States federal income tax purposes.

Voting Rights

Unless otherwise specified in the prospectus supplement relating to a series of preferred securities, the holders of the trust preferred securities will have no voting rights except as discussed below and as otherwise required by law.

If any proposed amendment to the amended and restated trust agreement provides for, or the property trustee of the trust otherwise proposes to effect:

any action that would adversely affect in any material respect the powers, preferences or special rights of the trust preferred securities, whether by way of amendment to the amended and restated trust agreement or otherwise; or

the dissolution, winding-up or termination of the trust, other than pursuant to the terms of the amended and restated trust agreement,

then the holders of the outstanding trust preferred securities as a class will be entitled to vote on the amendment or proposal. In that case, the amendment or proposal will be effective only if approved by the holders of a majority in aggregate liquidation amount of the outstanding trust preferred securities.

The holders of a majority in aggregate liquidation amount of the trust preferred securities issued by the trust have the right to direct the time, method and place of conducting any proceeding for any remedy available to the property trustee, or to direct the execution of any trust or power conferred upon the property trustee under the amended and restated trust agreement, including the right to direct the property trustee, as holder of the corresponding subordinated debt securities, to:

direct the time, method and place of conducting any proceeding for any remedy available to the subordinated debt indenture trustee for any related subordinated debt securities or execute any trust or power conferred on the subordinated debt indenture trustee with respect to the related subordinated debt securities;

waive specified past defaults under the indenture;

exercise any right to rescind or annul a declaration that the principal of all debentures shall be due or payable; or

consent to any amendment, modification or termination of the indenture where consent is required.

Amendments to the Trust Agreement

The amended and restated trust agreement may be amended from time to time by all of the trustees and us without the consent of the holders of the trust preferred securities to:

cure any ambiguity or correct or supplement any provision that may be inconsistent with any other provision;

- 64 -

Table of Contents

modify, eliminate or add to any provisions to the extent necessary to ensure that the trust will be classified as a grantor trust for United States federal income tax purposes at all times that any trust preferred securities are outstanding, or to ensure that the trust will not be required to register as an investment company under the Investment Company Act of 1940; or

reduce or increase the liquidation amount per trust preferred security along with the simultaneous proportionate increase or decrease in the number of trust preferred securities issued and outstanding solely for the purpose of maintaining the eligibility of the trust preferred securities for quotation or listing on any national securities exchange or other organization on which the trust preferred securities are then quoted or listed,

provided that, in each case, the amendment would not adversely affect in any material respect the interests of the holders of the trust preferred securities.

Other amendments to the amended and restated trust agreement may be made by us and the trustees of the trust upon approval of the holders of a majority in aggregate liquidation amount of the outstanding trust preferred securities and receipt by the trustees of an opinion of counsel to the effect that the amendment will not affect the trust s status as a grantor trust for United States federal income tax purposes, or affect the trust s exemption from the Investment Company Act of 1940.

Without the consent of each affected holder of trust preferred securities and trust common securities of the Trust, the amended and restated trust agreement may not be amended to:

change the amount or timing of any distribution on the trust preferred securities or otherwise adversely affect the amount of any distribution required to be made in respect of the trust preferred securities as of a specified date; or

restrict the right of a holder of any securities to institute suit for the enforcement of any payment on or after the distribution date.

Information Concerning the Trustees

Wilmington Trust Company serves as both the property trustee and the Delaware trustee under the trust agreements pursuant to which each trust is organized, and we expect them to continue in both roles under the amended and restated trust agreement for each trust. Wilmington Trust Company also serves as the trustee under the guarantee agreement related to the trust preferred securities. Wilmington Trust Company administers its corporate trust business at 1100 North Market Street, Wilmington, Delaware 19890.

In addition, Wilmington Trust Company serves as trustee under certain subordinated indentures to which our subsidiary, Radian Reinsurance Inc. (formerly Enhance Reinsurance Company), is a party. The fees paid to Wilmington Trust Company for such services are not material to Radian Group or Radian Reinsurance Inc.

Table of Contents

Two persons who are employees or officers of, or otherwise affiliated with, us will be named as the administrative trustees of the trusts under the amended and restated trust agreement for each trust. The prospectus supplement relating to the issuance of any particular trust preferred securities will describe our relationships with the trustees at the time that any trust preferred securities are offered.

Removal and Replacement of Trustees

Unless an event of default exists under the corresponding subordinated debt securities, we may remove any trustee at any time. If an event of default exists, the property trustee and the Delaware trustee may be removed only by the holders of a majority in liquidation amount of the outstanding trust preferred securities. In no event will the holders of the trust preferred securities have the right to vote to appoint, remove or replace the administrative trustees because these voting rights are vested exclusively in us as the holder of all the trust strust common securities. No resignation or removal of any trustee and no appointment of a successor trustee will be effective until the acceptance of appointment by the successor trustee in accordance with the amended and restated trust agreement.

Governing Law

The amended and restated trust agreement and the trust preferred securities will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Delaware, without regard to the conflict of laws provisions thereof.

- 66 -

DESCRIPTION OF TRUST PREFERRED SECURITIES GUARANTEES

Concurrently with the issuance by a trust of its trust preferred securities, we will execute and deliver a trust preferred securities guarantee agreement for the benefit of the holders from time to time of the trust preferred securities. Each such guarantee agreement will be qualified as an indenture under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939. Wilmington Trust Company, an independent trustee, will act as indenture trustee under the guarantee agreement for the purposes of compliance with the provisions of the Trust Indenture Act of 1939. The prospectus supplement relating to the applicable issuance of trust preferred securities will describe any significant differences between the guarantee and the summary below. The terms of the guarantee will be described in the guarantee agreement. The following summary does not purport to be complete and is subject in all respects to the provisions of, and is qualified in its entirety by reference to, the form of guarantee agreement that is filed as an exhibit to the registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part.

General

We will agree, to the extent set forth in the guarantee agreement, to pay in full the following guarantee payments to the holders of the trust preferred securities as and when due, regardless of any defense, right of set-off or counterclaim that the applicable trust may have or assert:

any accrued and unpaid distributions that are required to be paid on the trust preferred securities, to the extent the trust has funds available for the distribution:

the redemption price, and all accrued and unpaid distributions to the date of redemption relating to any trust preferred securities called for redemption by a trust, to the extent the trust has funds available to make such payments; and

upon a voluntary or involuntary liquidation, winding-up or termination of a trust other than in connection with the distribution of the debt securities to the holders of trust preferred securities or the redemption of all of the trust preferred securities, the lesser of:

the aggregate of the liquidation amount and all accrued and unpaid distributions on the trust preferred securities to the date of payment, to the extent the trust has funds available to make the distributions; and

the amount of assets of the trust remaining available for distribution to holders of the trust preferred securities in liquidation of the trust.

Our obligation to make a guarantee payment may be satisfied by direct payment of the required amounts by us to the holders of the trust preferred securities or by causing the applicable trust to pay those amounts to those holders.

We will irrevocably guarantee the payments described above, but only to the extent that the applicable trust has funds sufficient to make those payments. The guarantee, when taken together with our obligations under the corresponding subordinated debt securities issued to a

Table of Contents

trust and the related subordinated indenture and our obligations to pay the costs, expenses, debts and liabilities of the trust as described below in Expense Agreement, will provide a full and unconditional guarantee of the trust s obligations to make payments due on its trust preferred securities.

The guarantee is a guarantee of payment and not of collection. The guarantee does not cover any payments when the applicable trust does not have sufficient funds available to make those payments. If and to the extent we do not make the required payments on the subordinated debt securities, the trust will not have sufficient funds to make its payments, including distributions on the trust preferred securities. In that case, our guarantee will not apply, but we will still be liable for the required payments on the subordinated debt securities. If we fail to make payments under the guarantee, the holders of the trust preferred securities may enforce their rights as described below in

Events of Default.

Because we are a holding company that conducts all of our operations through our subsidiaries, our ability to meet our obligations under the guarantee will be dependent on the earnings and cash flows of those subsidiaries and the ability of those subsidiaries to pay dividends or to advance or repay funds to us. The applicable trust, as holder of the guarantee and the subordinated debt securities, generally will have a junior position to claims of creditors of our subsidiaries, including trade creditors, debtholders, secured creditors, taxing authorities, guarantee holders and any preferred stockholders.

Effect of Obligations Under the Subordinated Debt Securities and the Guarantee

As long as payments of interest and other payments are made when due on the related subordinated debt securities, those payments will be sufficient to cover distributions and payments due on the trust preferred securities and trust common securities because:

the aggregate principal amount of debt securities will be equal to the sum of the aggregate stated liquidation amount of the trust preferred securities and trust common securities;

the interest rate and the interest and other payment dates on the debt securities will match the distribution rate and distribution and other payment dates for the trust preferred securities and trust common securities;

we will pay all, and no trust shall be obligated to pay, directly or indirectly, any of such trust s costs, expenses, debt and obligations, except for such trust s obligations to the holders of the trust preferred securities and trust common securities; and

the amended and restated trust agreement further provides that the trustees of the trust will not take, or cause or permit the trust to, among other things, engage in any activity that is not consistent with the purposes of such trust.

- 68 -

Modification of the Trust Preferred Securities Guarantee; Assignment

We may amend the guarantee without the consent of any holder of the trust preferred securities if the amendment does not adversely affect the rights of those holders in any material respect. We may otherwise amend the guarantee only with the prior approval of the holders of a majority in liquidation amount of the outstanding trust preferred securities. All guarantees and agreements contained in the guarantee will bind our successors, assigns, receivers, trustees and representatives and will be for the benefit of the holders of the trust preferred securities then outstanding. Except in connection with any merger or consolidation of us with or into another entity or any sale, transfer or lease of substantially all of our assets to another entity, as permitted by the subordinated indenture, we may not assign our rights or delegate our obligations under the guarantee.

Termination

The guarantee will terminate:

upon full payment of the redemption price of all trust preferred securities;

upon distribution of the debt securities held by the applicable trust to the holders of the trust preferred securities of that trust; or

upon full payment of the amounts payable in accordance with the amended and restated trust agreement upon liquidation of the trust.

The guarantee will continue to be effective or will be reinstated, as the case may be, if at any time any holder of trust preferred securities must restore payment of any sums paid under those securities or the guarantee.

Events of Default

An event of default under the guarantee will occur upon our failure to perform any of our payment or other obligations under the guarantee, subject to applicable notice and cure provisions.

The holders of a majority in liquidation amount of the trust preferred securities will have the right to direct the time, method and place of conducting any proceeding for any remedy available to the guarantee trustee in respect of the guarantee or to direct the execution of any trust or power conferred upon the guarantee trustee under the guarantee. Any holder of the trust preferred securities may institute a legal proceeding directly against us to enforce the holder s rights under the guarantee or, if the guarantee trustee fails to enforce its rights under the guarantee agreement, to enforce the guarantee trustee s rights under the guarantee, without first instituting a legal proceeding against the trust, the guarantee trustee or any other person or entity.

Status of the Trust Preferred Securities Guarantee

The guarantee will constitute an unsecured obligation of ours and will rank as follows:

subordinate and junior in right of payment to all our other liabilities, except those liabilities that may be made equal or subordinate by their terms;

- 69 -

Table of Contents

equally with the most senior preferred or preference stock now or hereafter issued by us and with any guarantee now or hereafter entered into by us in respect of any preferred or preference stock of any of our affiliates; and

senior to our common stock.

The terms of the trust preferred securities will provide that, by acceptance of the trust preferred securities, each holder agrees to the subordination provisions and other terms of the guarantee. The guarantee does not limit the amount of additional indebtedness that we may incur.

Information Concerning the Guarantee Trustee

Wilmington Trust Company serves as the guarantee trustee under the guarantee agreement. See Description of Trust Preferred Securities Information Concerning the Trustees for a description of our relationship with Wilmington Trust Company. The guarantee trustee, before the occurrence of a default with respect to the guarantee, undertakes to perform only those duties as are set forth specifically in the guarantee. After a default, the guarantee trustee is required to exercise the rights and powers vested in it by the guarantee to the same degree of care as a prudent individual would exercise in the conduct of his or her own affairs. Subject to those provisions, the guarantee trustee is under no obligation to exercise any of the powers vested in it by the guarantee at the request of any holder of trust preferred securities, unless that holder offers reasonable indemnity against the costs, expenses and liabilities that might be incurred.

Governing Law

The guarantee will be governed by and construed in accordance with the internal laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.

Expense Agreement

Pursuant to the expense agreements to be entered into by us under the amended and restated trust agreement of each trust, we will irrevocably and unconditionally guarantee to each person or entity to whom a trust becomes indebted or liable, the full payment of any costs, expenses or liabilities of the trust, other than obligations of the trust to pay to the holders of the trust preferred securities or other similar interests in the trust the amounts due such holders pursuant to the terms of the trust preferred securities or such other similar interests, as the case may be.

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

We and/or any trust may sell the securities being offered hereby in any of, or any combination of, the following ways: to investors directly; through agents; to or through underwriters; or through dealers.

We and/or any trust may directly solicit offers to purchase securities and those sales may be made by us and/or any trust directly to institutional investors or others, who may be deemed to be underwriters within the meaning of the Securities Act with respect to any resale of those securities. The terms of any sales of this type will be described in the prospectus supplement relating to such securities.

Offers to purchase the securities may be solicited by agents designated by us and/or any trust from time to time. Any agent involved in the offer or sale of the securities under this prospectus will be named, and any commissions payable by us and/or any trust to these agents will be set forth, in the prospectus supplement relating to such securities. Unless otherwise indicated in a prospectus supplement relating to such securities, any agent will be acting on a reasonable best efforts basis for the period of its appointment.

If the securities are sold by means of an underwritten offering, we and/or any trust will execute an underwriting agreement with an underwriter or underwriters at the time an agreement for such sale is reached, and the names of the specific managing underwriter or underwriters, as well as any other underwriters, the respective amounts underwritten and the terms of the transaction, including commissions, discounts and any other compensation of the underwriters and dealers, if any, will be set forth in the prospectus supplement relating to such securities. That prospectus supplement and this prospectus will be used by the underwriters to make resales of the securities. If underwriters are used in the sale of any securities in connection with this prospectus, those securities will be acquired by the underwriters for their own account and may be resold from time to time. Any such sales may be made in one or more transactions, including negotiated transactions, at fixed public offering prices, at market prices prevailing at the time of sale, or at prices related to such prevailing market prices.

Securities may be offered to the public either through underwriting syndicates represented by managing underwriters or directly by one or more underwriters. If any underwriter or underwriters are used in the sale of securities, unless otherwise indicated in the prospectus supplement relating to such securities, the underwriting agreement will provide that the obligations of the underwriters are subject to some conditions precedent and that the underwriters with respect to a sale of the securities will be obligated to purchase all such securities if any are purchased.

In connection with the sale of the securities, underwriters may be deemed to have received compensation from us and/or any trust in the form of underwriting discounts or commissions and may also receive commissions from purchasers of the securities for whom they may act as agent. Underwriters may sell securities to or through dealers, and such dealers may receive compensation in the form of discounts, concessions or commissions from the underwriters and/or commissions from the purchasers for whom they may act as agent.

Table of Contents

We and/or any trust may grant to the underwriters options to purchase additional securities, to cover over-allotments, if any, at the public offering price, with additional underwriting commissions or discounts, as may be set forth in the prospectus supplement relating to such securities. If we and/or any trust grant any over-allotment option, the terms of that over-allotment option will be set forth in the prospectus supplement relating to such securities.

If we and/or any trust use a dealer in the sale of the securities in respect of which this prospectus is delivered, we and/or the trust will sell the securities to the dealer as principal. The dealer may then resell such securities to the public. Any such sales may be made in one or more transactions, including negotiated transactions, at fixed public offering prices, at market prices prevailing at the time of sale, or at prices related to such prevailing market prices. The name of the dealer and the terms of the transaction will be set forth in the prospectus supplement relating to those offers and sales.

Offered securities may also be offered and sold, if so indicated in the prospectus supplement relating to such securities, in connection with a planned remarketing upon their purchase, in accordance with a redemption or repayment pursuant to their terms, or otherwise, by one or more firms, acting as principals for their own accounts or as agents for us and/or the applicable trust. Any such remarketing firm will be identified and the terms of its agreements, if any, with us and/or the applicable trust and its compensation will be described in the prospectus supplement relating to such securities.

Agents, dealers and remarketing firms participating in the distribution of the securities may be deemed to be underwriters, and any discounts and commissions received by them and any profit realized by them on resale of the securities may be deemed to be underwriting discounts and commissions under the Securities Act. Agents, underwriters, dealers and remarketing firms may be entitled, under agreements entered into with us or the applicable trust, to indemnification from us or the applicable trust against and contribution toward certain civil liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act.

Agents, underwriters, dealers and remarketing firms may engage in transactions that stabilize, maintain or otherwise affect the price of the securities being offered, including over-allotment, stabilizing and short-covering transactions in such securities, and the imposition of a penalty bid, in connection with the offering.

Certain of the agents, underwriters, dealers, remarketing firms and their affiliates may be customers of, engage in transactions with and perform services for us and our subsidiaries and/or any trust in the ordinary course of business. Any such relationships will be disclosed in the applicable prospectus supplement.

Certain of the securities offered will be a new issue of securities and will have no established trading market. Any underwriter to whom we and/or any trust sell securities for public offering and sale may make a market in those securities, but the underwriters will not be obligated to do so and may discontinue any market making at any time without notice. The securities may or may not be listed on a national securities exchange or a foreign securities exchange. No assurance can be given as to the liquidity of or the trading markets for any securities.

LEGAL MATTERS

The validity of the securities described in this prospectus will be passed upon for us by Drinker Biddle & Reath LLP. Unless otherwise stated in the prospectus supplement relating to a series of preferred securities, the validity of the preferred securities offered by the trusts will be passed upon for the trusts by Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP, special Delaware counsel to the trusts. The validity of any securities offered in the prospectus supplement relating to such securities will be passed upon for any underwriters or agents by counsel to be named in the prospectus supplement relating to such securities.

EXPERTS

The financial statements and the related financial statement schedules incorporated in this prospectus by reference from the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K have been audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report, which is incorporated herein by reference, and have been so incorporated in reliance upon the report of such firm given upon their authority as experts in accounting and auditing.

- 73 -

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

Radian Group Inc.

We file annual, quarterly and special reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC under Registration Number 001-11356. You may read and copy any document that we file at the Public Reference Room of the SEC at 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Room 1024, Washington, D.C. 20549. You may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. In addition, the SEC maintains an Internet site at http://www.sec.gov, from which interested persons can electronically access the registration statement including its exhibits and schedules. Our common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the ticker symbol RDN. Our SEC filings are also available from our web site at www.radian.biz. Information contained on our web site or any other web site is not incorporated into this prospectus and does not constitute a part of this prospectus.

The SEC allows us to incorporate by reference the information we file with them, which means that we can disclose important information to you by referring you to those documents. The information incorporated by reference is an important part of this prospectus, and information that we file later with the SEC will automatically update and supersede this information. We incorporate by reference the documents listed below and any future filings made with the SEC under Sections 13(a), 13(c), 14, or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 until we sell all of the securities:

Our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003, filed on March 15, 2004.

Our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2004, filed on May 7, 2004, and for the quarter ended June 30, 2004, filed on August 6, 2004.

Our Current Reports on Form 8-K filed on May 12, 2004 and dated May 11, 2004 and filed on June 18, 2004 and dated June 18, 2004.

The description of our common stock set forth in our registration statement on Form 8-A/A filed with the SEC on August 12, 2004.

You may request a free copy of these filings, other than any exhibits, unless the exhibits are specifically incorporated by reference into this prospectus, by writing or telephoning us at the following address:

Radian Group Inc.

1601 Market Street

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103

Attention: Investor Relations

(215) 564-6600

- 74 -

The Trusts

There are no separate financial statements of the trusts in this prospectus. We do not believe the financial statements would be helpful to the holders of the trust preferred securities of the trusts because:

we, a reporting company under the Exchange Act, will directly or indirectly own all of the voting securities of the trusts;

the trusts have no independent operations or proposals to engage in any activity other than issuing securities representing undivided beneficial interests in the assets of the applicable trust and investing the proceeds in subordinated debt securities issued by us; and

our obligations under the amended and restated trust agreement of each trust, the guarantee issued with respect to the trust preferred securities of that trust and the subordinated debt securities purchased by that trust under the related indenture, when taken together, constitute a full and unconditional guarantee of payments due on the trust preferred securities. See Description of Trust Preferred Securities Guarantees.

The trusts are not subject to the information reporting requirements of the Exchange Act.

- 75 -

PART II

INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED IN PROSPECTUS

Item 14. Other Expenses of Issuance and Distribution

The following table sets forth the costs and expenses payable by the Registrant in connection with the sale of the securities being registered hereby. All amounts are estimates except the registration fee.

	Amount to be Paid	
	-	
Registration fee	\$	101,360
Printing	\$	15,000
Legal fees and expenses	\$	115,000
Trustee fees	\$	5,000
Accounting fees and expenses	\$	25,000
Total	\$	261,360

Item 15. Indemnification of Directors and Officers

Section 102(b)(7) of the Delaware General Corporation Law (the DGCL) permits a corporation, in its certificate of incorporation, to limit or eliminate, subject to certain statutory limitations, the liability of directors to the corporation or its stockholders for monetary damages for breaches of fiduciary duty, except for liability (a) for any breach of the director s duty of loyalty to the corporation or its stockholders, (b) for acts or omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law, (c) under Section 174 of the DGCL, or (d) for any transaction from which the director derived an improper personal benefit. Article Seventh of the Company s amended and restated certificate of incorporation provides that the personal liability of the Company s directors is eliminated to the fullest extent permitted by the DGCL.

Under Section 145 of the DGCL, a corporation has the power to indemnify directors and officers under certain prescribed circumstances and subject to certain limitations against certain costs and expenses, including attorneys fees actually and reasonably incurred in connection with any action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, to which any of them is a party by reason of being a director or officer of the corporation if it is determined that the director or officer acted in accordance with the applicable standard of conduct set forth in such statutory provision. Article VII of the Company s bylaws provides that the Company will indemnify any person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding by reason of the fact that he is or was a director, officer or other authorized representative of the Company, or is or was serving at the request of the Company as a director, officer, employee or agent of another entity, against certain liabilities, costs and expenses. Article VII also provides for the advancement of expenses to an indemnified party upon receipt of an undertaking by the party to repay those amounts if it is finally determined that the indemnified party is not entitled to indemnification. Article VII further permits the Company to maintain insurance on behalf of any person who is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of the Company, or is or was serving at the request of the

Table of Contents

Company as a director, officer, employee or agent of another entity, against any liability asserted against such person and incurred by such person in any such capacity or arising out of his status as such, whether or not the Company would have the power to indemnify such person against such liability under the DGCL.

The Company s directors and officers are covered by insurance policies indemnifying them against certain liabilities, including certain liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the Securities Act), which might be incurred by them in such capacities and against which they cannot be indemnified by the Company.

II - 2

Item 16. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a) The following exhibits are filed as part of this Registration Statement:

Exhibit

Number	Description of Document
1.1*	Form of underwriting agreement for offering of common stock
1.2*	Form of underwriting agreement for offering of preferred stock
1.3*	Form of underwriting agreement for offering of depositary shares
1.4*	Form of underwriting agreement for offering of units
1.5*	Form of underwriting agreement for offering of debt securities (senior debt securities, senior subordinated debt securities and/or subordinated debt securities)
1.6*	Form of underwriting agreement for offering of trust preferred securities of Radian Group Capital Trust I or Radian Group Capital Trust II and trust preferred securities guarantees of Radian Group Inc.
4.1+	Form of senior debt securities indenture
4.2+	Form of senior subordinated debt securities indenture
4.3+	Form of subordinated debt securities indenture
4.4+	Form of subordinated debt securities indenture with respect to debt securities issued to Radian Group Capital Trust I or Radian Group Capital Trust II
4.5+	Form of senior debt security (included in Exhibit 4.1)
4.6+	Form of senior subordinated debt security (included in Exhibit 4.2)
4.7+	Form of subordinated debt security (included in Exhibit 4.3)
4.8+	Form of subordinated debt security for debt securities issued to Radian Group Capital Trust I or Radian Group Capital Trust II (included in Exhibit 4.4)
4.9**	Form of certificate of designation with respect to any preferred stock (together with form of preferred stock certificate)
4.10+	Certificate of Trust of Radian Group Capital Trust I
4.11+	Certificate of Trust of Radian Group Capital Trust II
4.12+	Trust Agreement of Radian Group Capital Trust I
4.13+	Trust Agreement of Radian Group Capital Trust II
4.14+	Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement for Radian Group Capital Trust I or Radian Group Capital Trust II
4.15+	Form of Preferred Security Certificate for Radian Group Capital Trust I and Radian Group Capital Trust II (included in Exhibit E to the Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement filed as Exhibit 4.14 hereto)
4.16+	Form of Trust Preferred Securities Guarantee Agreement
4.17+	Form of Expense Agreement (included in Exhibit D to the Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement filed as Exhibit 4.14 hereto)
4.18*	Form of Deposit Agreement
4.19*	Form of Depositary Receipt
4.20**	Form of Unit Agreement
4.21**	Form of Unit Certificate
5.1+	Opinion of Drinker Biddle & Reath LLP as to Radian Group Inc.
5.2+	Opinion of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust I
5.3+	Opinion of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust II
12+	Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock Dividends

II - 3

Table of Contents

- 23.1+ Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP
- 23.2+ Consent of Drinker Biddle & Reath LLP (included in Exhibit 5.1)
- 23.3+ Consent of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP (included in Exhibits 5.2 and 5.3)
- 24+ Power of Attorney (see signature page of this Form S-3)
- 25.1* Statement of Eligibility on Form T-1 under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, of the trustee under the indenture with respect to the senior debt securities, senior subordinated debt securities, subordinated debt securities, and the subordinated debt securities to be issued to a trust
- 25.2+ Statement of Eligibility on Form T-1 under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, of the trustee under the Amended and Restated Trust Agreement of Radian Group Capital Trust I
- 25.3+ Statement of Eligibility on Form T-1 under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, of the trustee under the Amended and Restated Trust Agreement of Radian Group Capital Trust II
- 25.4+ Statement of Eligibility on Form T-1 under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, of the trustee under the Trust Preferred Securities Guarantee related to Radian Group Capital Trust I and II

Filed herewith.

II - 4

^{*} To be filed by amendment, or as applicable to a particular offering of securities, as an exhibit to a Current Report on Form 8-K, pursuant to Regulation S-K, Item 601(b).

^{**} To be filed as an exhibit to a report pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

Item 17. Undertakings

- (a) The undersigned registrants hereby undertake:
 - (1) To file, during any period in which offers or sales are being made of securities registered hereby, a post-effective amendment to this registration statement:
 - (i) to include any prospectus required by Section 10(a)(3) of the Securities Act of 1933;
 - (ii) to reflect in the prospectus any facts or events arising after the effective date of the registration statement (or the most recent post-effective amendment thereof) which, individually or in the aggregate, represent a fundamental change in the information set forth in the registration statement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any increase or decrease in volume of securities offered (if the total dollar value of securities offered would not exceed that which was registered) and any deviation from the low or high end of the estimated maximum offering range may be reflected in the form of prospectus filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Rule 424(b) if, in the aggregate, the changes in volume and price represent no more than a 20 percent change in the maximum aggregate offering price set forth in the Calculation of Registration Fee table in the then-effective registration statement;
 - (iii) to include any material information with respect to the plan of distribution not previously disclosed in the registration statement or any material change to such information in the registration statement;

provided, however, that paragraphs (i) and (ii) above do not apply if the information required to be included in a post-effective amendment by those paragraphs is contained in periodic reports filed by the registrants pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 that are incorporated by reference in this registration statement.

- (2) That, for the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each such post-effective amendment shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered herein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof.
- (3) To remove from registration by means of a post-effective amendment any of the securities being registered which remain unsold at the termination of the offering.
- (b) The undersigned registrants hereby undertake that, for purposes of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each filing of the registrant s annual report pursuant to Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (and, where applicable, each filing of an employee benefit plan s annual report pursuant to Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) that is incorporated by reference in

II - 5

Table of Contents

the registration statement shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered herein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof.

- (c) Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933 may be permitted to directors, officers and controlling persons of the registrant pursuant to the foregoing provisions, or otherwise, the registrants have been advised that in the opinion of the Securities and Exchange Commission such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Act and is, therefore, unenforceable. In the event that a claim for indemnification against such liabilities (other than the payment by the registrants of expenses incurred or paid by a director, officer or controlling person of the registrants in the successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding) is asserted by such director, officer or controlling person in connection with the securities being registered, the registrants will, unless in the opinion of its counsel the matter has been settled by controlling precedent, submit to a court of appropriate jurisdiction the question whether such indemnification by it is against public policy as expressed in the Act and will be governed by the final adjudication of such issue.
- (d) The undersigned registrants hereby undertake that:
 - (1) For purposes of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, the information omitted from the form of prospectus filed as part of this registration statement in reliance upon Rule 430A and contained in a form of prospectus filed by the registrants pursuant to Rule 424(b)(1) or (4) or 497(h) under the Securities Act shall be deemed to be part of this registration statement as of the time it was declared effective; and
 - (2) For the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each post-effective amendment that contains a form of prospectus shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof.
- (e) The undersigned registrants hereby undertake to file an application for the purpose of determining the eligibility of the trustee to act under subsection (a) of Section 310 of the Trust Indenture Act in accordance with the rules and regulations prescribed by the Commission under Section 305(b)(2) of the Act.

II - 6

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, Radian Group Inc. certifies that it has reasonable grounds to believe that it meets all of the requirements for filing on Form S-3 and has duly caused this registration statement on Form S-3 to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Philadelphia, Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, on August 13, 2004.

RADIAN GROUP INC.

By: /s/ Howard S. Yaruss

Name: Howard S. Yaruss

Title: Executive Vice President, Secretary and General Counsel

POWER OF ATTORNEY

Each of the undersigned directors and officers of Radian Group Inc. hereby severally constitutes and appoints Frank P. Fillips and Roy J. Kasmar, and each of them, as his or her true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents, in any and all capacities, with full power of substitution, to sign and file any and all amendments to this registration statement (including post-effective amendments) and any subsequent registration statement filed by Radian Group Inc. pursuant to Rule 462(b) of the Securities Act of 1933, and to file the same with exhibits thereto and other documents in connection therewith with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agent, and each of them, full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done in and about the premises, as fully to all intents and purposes as he or she might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming all that each said attorney-in-fact and agent, or any of them, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, this registration statement has been signed by the following persons in the capacities indicated and on the dates indicated.

/s/ Frank P. Filipps	Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board	August 13, 2004
Frank P. Filipps		
/s/ Roy J. Kasmar	President, Chief Operating Officer and Director	August 13, 2004
Roy J. Kasmar	officer and Bricero	
/s/ C. Robert Quint	Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer	August 13, 2004
C. Robert Quint	Cc. 1	

Table of Contents		
/s/ John J. Calamari	Vice President and Controller	August 13, 2004
John J. Calamari	(Principal Accounting Officer)	
/s/ James W. Jennings	Director	August 13, 2004
James W. Jennings		
/s/ Robert W. Richards	Director	August 13, 2004
Robert W. Richards		
/s/ Anthony W. Schweiger	Director	August 13, 2004
Anthony W. Schweiger		
/s/ Howard B. Culang	Director	August 13, 2004
Howard B. Culang		
/s/ Stephen T. Hopkins	Director	August 13, 2004
Stephen T. Hopkins		
/s/ Ronald W. Moore	Director	August 13, 2004
Ronald W. Moore		
/s/ Herbert Wender	Director	August 13, 2004
Herbert Wender		
/s/ David C. Carney	Director	August 13, 2004
David C. Carney		
/s/ Jan Nicholson	Director	August 13, 2004
Jan Nicholson		

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Securities Act of 1933, Radian Group Capital Trust I has duly caused this registration statement on Form S-3 to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereto duly authorized, in the City of Philadelphia, Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, on August 13, 2004.

RADIAN GROUP CAPITAL TRUST I

By: Radian Group Inc., as Depositor

By: /s/ Howard S. Yaruss

Name: Howard S. Yaruss
Title: Executive Vice President,

Secretary and General Counsel

II - 9

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Securities Act of 1933, Radian Group Capital Trust II has duly caused this registration statement on Form S-3 to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereto duly authorized, in the City of Philadelphia, Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, on August 13, 2004.

RADIAN GROUP CAPITAL TRUST II

By: Radian Group Inc., as Depositor

By: /s/ Howard S. Yaruss

Name: Howard S. Yaruss
Title: Executive Vice President,

Secretary and General Counsel

II - 10

EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit

1.1* Form of underwriting agreement for offering of common stock 1.2* Form of underwriting agreement for offering of preferred stock 1.3* Form of underwriting agreement for offering of depositary shares 1.4* Form of underwriting agreement for offering of dunits 1.5* Form of underwriting agreement for offering of dunits 1.5* Form of underwriting agreement for offering of dunits 1.6* Form of underwriting agreement for offering of the securities (senior debt securities, senior subordinated debt securities and/or subordinated debt securities guarantees of Radian Group Capital Trust I or Radian Group Capital Trust II and trust preferred securities indenture Form of senior debt securities indenture Form of senior debt securities indenture Form of subordinated debt securities indenture Form of subordinated debt securities indenture Form of senior debt security (included in Exhibit 4.1) Form of senior debt security (included in Exhibit 4.2) Form of senior debt security (included in Exhibit 4.2) Form of senior debt security (included in Exhibit 4.2) Form of senior subordinated debt security (included in Exhibit 4.2) Form of subordinated debt security (included in Exhibit 4.2) Form of subordinated debt security (included in Exhibit 4.2) Form of subordinated debt security (included in Exhibit 4.2) Form of subordinated debt security (included in Exhibit 4.2) Form of subordinated debt security (included in Exhibit 4.2) Form of subordinated debt security (included in Exhibit 4.2) Form of senior subordinated debt security (included in Exhibit 4.2) Form of Subordinated debt security (included in Exhibit 4.2) Form of Subordinated debt security (included in Exhibit 4.2) Form of Subordinated debt security (included in Exhibit 4.2) Form of Subordinated debt security (included in Exhibit 4.2) Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement Form of Amended and Restated	Number	Description of Document
1.3* Form of underwriting agreement for offering of depositary shares 1.4* Form of underwriting agreement for offering of units 1.5* Form of underwriting agreement for offering of units 1.6* Form of underwriting agreement for offering of trust preferred securities of Radian Group Capital Trust I or Radian Group Capital Trust II and trust preferred securities guarantees of Radian Group Inc. 1.6* Form of senior debt securities indenture	1.1*	Form of underwriting agreement for offering of common stock
1.4* Form of underwriting agreement for offering of units subordinated debt securities (senior debt securities, senior subordinated debt securities and/or subordinated debt securities)	1.2*	Form of underwriting agreement for offering of preferred stock
1.5% Form of underwriting agreement for offering of debt securities (senior debt securities, senior subordinated debt securities) 1.6% Form of underwriting agreement for offering of trust preferred securities of Radian Group Capital Trust I or Radian Group Capital Trust II and trust preferred securities indenture 1.2+ Form of senior debt securities indenture 1.3+ Form of subordinated debt securities indenture 1.5+ Form of subordinated debt security (included in Exhibit 4.1) 1.5+ Form of subordinated debt security (included in Exhibit 4.2) 1.5+ Form of subordinated debt security (included in Exhibit 4.3) 1.5+ Form of subordinated debt security (included in Exhibit 4.3) 1.5+ Form of subordinated debt security (included in Exhibit 4.3) 1.5+ Form of subordinated debt security (included in Exhibit 4.3) 1.5+ Form of subordinated debt security (included in Exhibit 4.3) 1.5+ Form of subordinated debt security (included in Exhibit 4.3) 1.5+ Form of subordinated debt security (included in Exhibit 4.3) 1.5+ Form of subordinated debt security (included in Exhibit 4.3) 1.5+ Form of subordinated debt security (included in Exhibit 4.3) 1.5+ Form of subordinated debt security (included in Exhibit 4.3) 1.5+ Form of subordinated debt security (included in Exhibit 4.3) 1.5+ Form of subordinated debt security (included in Exhibit 4.3) 1.5+ Form of preferred Securities indenture 1.5+ Form of preferred Security (included in Exhibit 4.14) 1.5+ Form of Preferred of Radian Group Capital Trust I 1.5+ Form of Preferred Security (included in Exhibit 1.5+ 1.5+ Form of Preferred Security (included in Exhibit 1.5+ 1.5+ Form of Preferred Security (included in Exhibit 1.5+ 1.5+ Form of Preferred Security (included in Exhibit 1.5+ 1.5+ Form of Deposit Agreement 1.5+ Form of Deposit Agreement 1.5+ Form of Deposit Agre	1.3*	
subordinated debt securities) Trust II and trust preferred securities of Radian Group Capital Trust I or Radian Group Capital Trust II and trust preferred securities indenture 4.2+ Form of senior debt securities indenture 4.2+ Form of senior subordinated debt securities indenture 4.3+ Form of subordinated debt securities indenture 4.4- Form of subordinated debt securities indenture 4.4- Form of subordinated debt securities indenture 4.5- Form of subordinated debt securities indenture with respect to debt securities issued to Radian Group Capital Trust I or Radian Group Capital Trust II 4.5- Form of senior subordinated debt security (included in Exhibit 4.2) 4.7- Form of senior subordinated debt security (included in Exhibit 4.2) 4.7- Form of subordinated debt security (included in Exhibit 4.2) 4.8- Form of subordinated debt security for debt securities issued to Radian Group Capital Trust II (included in Exhibit 4.4) 4.9** Form of crifficate of designation with respect to any preferred stock (together with form of preferred stock certificate) 4.10- Certificate of Trust of Radian Group Capital Trust I 4.11- Certificate of Trust of Radian Group Capital Trust II 4.12- Trust Agreement of Radian Group Capital Trust II 4.13- Trust Agreement of Radian Group Capital Trust II 4.14- Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement for Radian Group Capital Trust I or Radian Group Capital Trust II 4.15- Form of Preferred Security Certificate for Radian Group Capital Trust I and Radian Group Capital Trust II (included in Exhibit E to the Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement filed as Exhibit 4.14 hereto) 4.16- Form of Trust Preferred Securities Guarantee Agreement 4.17- Form of Deposit Agreement 5.2- Opinion of Drinker Biddle & Reath LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust II 5.3- Opinion of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust II 5.3- Opinion of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust II 5.3- Opinion of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust II 5.4- O	1.4*	
Trust II and trust preferred securities guarantees of Radian Group Inc. 4.1+ Form of senior debt securities indenture 4.3+ Form of subordinated debt securities indenture 4.3+ Form of subordinated debt securities indenture 4.4+ Form of subordinated debt securities indenture with respect to debt securities issued to Radian Group Capital Trust I or Radian Group Capital Trust I or Radian Group Capital Trust I I 4.5+ Form of senior debt security (included in Exhibit 4.2) 4.6+ Form of senior subordinated debt security (included in Exhibit 4.2) 4.7+ Form of senior subordinated debt security (included in Exhibit 4.3) 4.8+ Form of subordinated debt security for debt securities issued to Radian Group Capital Trust I or Radian Group Capital Trust II (included in Exhibit 4.4) 4.9** Form of certificate of designation with respect to any preferred stock (together with form of preferred stock certificate) 4.10+ Certificate of Trust of Radian Group Capital Trust II 4.11+ Certificate of Trust of Radian Group Capital Trust II 4.12+ Trust Agreement of Radian Group Capital Trust II 4.13+ Trust Agreement of Radian Group Capital Trust II 4.14+ Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement for Radian Group Capital Trust I or Radian Group Capital Trust II (included in Exhibit E to the Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement filed as Exhibit 4.14 hereto) 4.16+ Form of Trust Preferred Securities Guarantee Agreement 4.17+ Form of Expense Agreement (included in Exhibit D to the Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement filed as Exhibit 4.14 hereto) 4.18* Form of Deposit Agreement 4.19* Form of Depositary Receipt 4.20** Form of Unit Certificate 5.2+ Opinion of Drinker Biddle & Reath LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust I 5.3+ Opinion of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust II 6. Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock Dividends	1.5*	
4.2+ Form of senior subordinated debt securities indenture 4.3+ Form of subordinated debt securities indenture 4.5+ Form of subordinated debt securities indenture with respect to debt securities issued to Radian Group Capital Trust I or Radian Group Capital Trust I I 4.5+ Form of senior debt security (included in Exhibit 4.1) 4.5+ Form of senior subordinated debt security (included in Exhibit 4.2) 4.7+ Form of subordinated debt security (included in Exhibit 4.3) 4.8+ Form of subordinated debt security (included in Exhibit 4.3) 4.9** Form of subordinated debt security for debt securities issued to Radian Group Capital Trust I or Radian Group Capital Trust II 4.10+ Certificate of Trust of Radian Group Capital Trust I 4.11+ Certificate of Trust of Radian Group Capital Trust I 4.12+ Trust Agreement of Radian Group Capital Trust I 4.13+ Trust Agreement of Radian Group Capital Trust II 4.14+ Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement for Radian Group Capital Trust I or Radian Group Capital Trust II 4.15+ Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement filed as Exhibit 4.14 hereto) 4.16+ Form of Trust Preferred Securities Guarantee Agreement 4.17+ Form of Expense Agreement (included in Exhibit D to the Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement filed as Exhibit 4.14 hereto) 4.18* Form of Deposit Agreement 4.19* Form of Depositary Receipt 5.20* Form of Unit Agreement 5.1+ Opinion of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust II 5.3+ Opinion of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust II 5.3+ Opinion of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust II 5.3+ Opinion of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust II 5.3- Opinion of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust II 5.3- Opinion of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust II 5.3- Opinion of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust II 5.3- Opinion of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust II 5.3- Op	1.6*	
4.3+Form of subordinated debt securities indenture4.4+Form of subordinated debt securities indenture with respect to debt securities issued to Radian Group Capital Trust I or Radian Group4.5+Form of senior debt security (included in Exhibit 4.1)4.6+Form of senior subordinated debt security (included in Exhibit 4.2)4.7+Form of subordinated debt security (included in Exhibit 4.3)4.8+Form of subordinated debt security for debt securities issued to Radian Group Capital Trust I or Radian Group Capital Trust II (included in Exhibit 4.4)4.9**Form of certificate of Trust of Radian Group Capital Trust I4.10+Certificate of Trust of Radian Group Capital Trust II4.11+Certificate of Trust of Radian Group Capital Trust II4.12+Trust Agreement of Radian Group Capital Trust II4.13+Trust Agreement of Radian Group Capital Trust II4.14-Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement for Radian Group Capital Trust I or Radian Group Capital Trust II4.15+Form of Preferred Security Certificate for Radian Group Capital Trust I and Radian Group Capital Trust II (included in Exhibit E to the Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement fled as Exhibit 4.14 hereto)4.16+Form of Expense Agreement (included in Exhibit D to the Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement fled as Exhibit 4.14 hereto)4.18*Form of Deposit Agreement4.19*Form of Depositary Receipt4.20**Form of Unit Agreement5.1+Opinion of Dirinker Biddle & Reath LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust II5.2+Opinion of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust II </td <td>4.1+</td> <td>Form of senior debt securities indenture</td>	4.1+	Form of senior debt securities indenture
Form of subordinated debt securities indenture with respect to debt securities issued to Radian Group Capital Trust I or Radian Group Capital Trust I or Senior debt security (included in Exhibit 4.1) Form of senior subordinated debt security (included in Exhibit 4.2) Form of subordinated debt security (included in Exhibit 4.3) 4.8+ Form of subordinated debt security for debt securities issued to Radian Group Capital Trust I or Radian Group Capital Trust II (included in Exhibit 4.4) Form of certificate of designation with respect to any preferred stock (together with form of preferred stock certificate) 4.9** Form of certificate of Trust of Radian Group Capital Trust I 4.10+ Certificate of Trust of Radian Group Capital Trust I 4.11+ Certificate of Trust of Radian Group Capital Trust I 4.12+ Trust Agreement of Radian Group Capital Trust I 4.13+ Trust Agreement of Radian Group Capital Trust II 4.14+ Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement for Radian Group Capital Trust I and Radian Group Capital Trust II (included in Exhibit E to the Form of Preferred Securitics Guarantee Agreement 4.16+ Form of Trust Preferred Securities Guarantee Agreement 4.17+ Form of Deposit Agreement (included in Exhibit D to the Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement filed as Exhibit 4.14 hereto) 4.18* Form of Deposit Agreement 4.19* Fo	4.2+	Form of senior subordinated debt securities indenture
Capital Trust II 4.5+ Form of senior debt security (included in Exhibit 4.1) 4.6+ Form of senior subordinated debt security (included in Exhibit 4.2) 4.7+ Form of subordinated debt security (included in Exhibit 4.3) 4.8+ Form of subordinated debt security for debt securities issued to Radian Group Capital Trust I or Radian Group Capital Trust II (included in Exhibit 4.4) 4.9** Form of certificate of designation with respect to any preferred stock (together with form of preferred stock certificate) 4.10+ Certificate of Trust of Radian Group Capital Trust I 4.11+ Certificate of Trust of Radian Group Capital Trust II 4.12+ Trust Agreement of Radian Group Capital Trust II 4.13+ Trust Agreement of Radian Group Capital Trust II 4.14+ Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement for Radian Group Capital Trust I or Radian Group Capital Trust II 4.15+ Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement filed as Exhibit 4.14 hereto) 4.16+ Form of Trust Preferred Securities Guarantee Agreement 4.17+ Form of Expense Agreement (included in Exhibit D to the Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement 4.18* Form of Deposit Agreement 4.19* Form of Deposit Agreement 4.19* Form of Deposit Receipt 4.20** Form of Unit Agreement 4.21** Form of Unit Certificate 5.1+ Opinion of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust II 5.3+ Opinion of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust II Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock Dividends	4.3+	Form of subordinated debt securities indenture
4.6+ Form of senior subordinated debt security (included in Exhibit 4.2) 4.7+ Form of subordinated debt security (included in Exhibit 4.3) 4.8+ Form of subordinated debt security for debt securities issued to Radian Group Capital Trust I or Radian Group Capital Trust II (included in Exhibit 4.4) 4.9** Form of certificate of designation with respect to any preferred stock (together with form of preferred stock certificate) 4.10+ Certificate of Trust of Radian Group Capital Trust II 4.11+ Certificate of Trust of Radian Group Capital Trust II 4.12+ Trust Agreement of Radian Group Capital Trust II 4.13+ Trust Agreement of Radian Group Capital Trust II 4.14+ Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement for Radian Group Capital Trust I or Radian Group Capital Trust II (included in Exhibit E to the Form of Preferred Security Certificate for Radian Group Capital Trust I and Radian Group Capital Trust II (included in Exhibit E to the Form of Trust Preferred Securities Guarantee Agreement 4.16+ Form of Expense Agreement (included in Exhibit D to the Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement filed as Exhibit 4.14 hereto) 4.18* Form of Deposit Agreement 4.19* Form of Deposit Agreement 4.19* Form of Deposit Agreement 4.20** Form of Unit Agreement 5.1+ Opinion of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust II 5.3+ Opinion of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust II Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock Dividends	4.4+	Capital Trust II
4.7+ Form of subordinated debt security (included in Exhibit 4.3) 4.8+ Form of subordinated debt security for debt securities issued to Radian Group Capital Trust I or Radian Group Capital Trust II (included in Exhibit 4.4) 4.9** Form of certificate of designation with respect to any preferred stock (together with form of preferred stock certificate) 4.10+ Certificate of Trust of Radian Group Capital Trust II 4.11+ Certificate of Trust of Radian Group Capital Trust II 4.12+ Trust Agreement of Radian Group Capital Trust II 4.13+ Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement for Radian Group Capital Trust I or Radian Group Capital Trust II 4.15+ Form of Preferred Security Certificate for Radian Group Capital Trust I and Radian Group Capital Trust II (included in Exhibit E to the Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement filed as Exhibit 4.14 hereto) 4.16+ Form of Trust Preferred Securities Guarantee Agreement 4.17+ Form of Expense Agreement (included in Exhibit D to the Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement filed as Exhibit 4.14 hereto) 4.18* Form of Deposit Agreement 4.19* Form of Deposit Agreement 4.19* Form of Depositary Receipt 4.20** Form of Unit Agreement 4.21** Form of Unit Agreement 4.21** Form of Unit Certificate 5.1+ Opinion of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust II 5.3+ Opinion of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust II 12+ Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock Dividends	4.5+	
4.8+ Form of subordinated debt security for debt securities issued to Radian Group Capital Trust I or Radian Group Capital Trust II (included in Exhibit 4.4) 4.9** Form of certificate of designation with respect to any preferred stock (together with form of preferred stock certificate) 4.10+ Certificate of Trust of Radian Group Capital Trust II 4.11+ Certificate of Trust of Radian Group Capital Trust II 4.12+ Trust Agreement of Radian Group Capital Trust II 4.13+ Trust Agreement of Radian Group Capital Trust II 4.14+ Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement for Radian Group Capital Trust I or Radian Group Capital Trust II 4.15+ Form of Preferred Security Certificate for Radian Group Capital Trust I and Radian Group Capital Trust II (included in Exhibit E to the Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement filed as Exhibit 4.14 hereto) 4.16+ Form of Trust Preferred Securities Guarantee Agreement 4.17+ Form of Expense Agreement (included in Exhibit D to the Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement filed as Exhibit 4.14 hereto) 4.18* Form of Deposit Agreement 4.19* Form of Deposit Agreement 4.20** Form of Unit Agreement 4.21** Form of Unit Agreement 4.21** Form of Unit Certificate 5.1+ Opinion of Drinker Biddle & Reath LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust I 5.3+ Opinion of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust II 6.2+ Opinion of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust II 6.3- Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock Dividends		
(included in Exhibit 4.4) 4.9** Form of certificate of designation with respect to any preferred stock (together with form of preferred stock certificate) 4.10+ Certificate of Trust of Radian Group Capital Trust I 4.11+ Certificate of Trust of Radian Group Capital Trust II 4.12+ Trust Agreement of Radian Group Capital Trust II 4.13+ Trust Agreement of Radian Group Capital Trust II 4.14+ Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement for Radian Group Capital Trust I or Radian Group Capital Trust II 4.15+ Form of Preferred Security Certificate for Radian Group Capital Trust I and Radian Group Capital Trust II (included in Exhibit E to the Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement filed as Exhibit 4.14 hereto) 4.16+ Form of Trust Preferred Securities Guarantee Agreement 4.17+ Form of Expense Agreement (included in Exhibit D to the Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement filed as Exhibit 4.14 hereto) 4.18* Form of Deposit Agreement 4.19* Form of Deposit Agreement 4.20** Form of Unit Agreement 4.21** Form of Unit Agreement 4.21** Form of Unit Certificate 5.1+ Opinion of Drinker Biddle & Reath LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust I 5.3+		
4.10+ Certificate of Trust of Radian Group Capital Trust I 4.11+ Certificate of Trust of Radian Group Capital Trust II 4.12+ Trust Agreement of Radian Group Capital Trust I 4.13+ Trust Agreement of Radian Group Capital Trust II 4.14+ Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement for Radian Group Capital Trust I or Radian Group Capital Trust II 4.15+ Form of Preferred Security Certificate for Radian Group Capital Trust I and Radian Group Capital Trust II (included in Exhibit E to the Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement filed as Exhibit 4.14 hereto) 4.16+ Form of Trust Preferred Securities Guarantee Agreement 4.17+ Form of Expense Agreement (included in Exhibit D to the Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement filed as Exhibit 4.14 hereto) 4.18* Form of Deposit Agreement 4.19* Form of Depositary Receipt 4.20** Form of Unit Agreement 4.21** Form of Unit Certificate 5.1+ Opinion of Drinker Biddle & Reath LLP as to Radian Group Inc. 5.2+ Opinion of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust II 5.3+ Opinion of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust II Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock Dividends	4.8+	
 4.11+ Certificate of Trust of Radian Group Capital Trust II 4.12+ Trust Agreement of Radian Group Capital Trust I 4.13+ Trust Agreement of Radian Group Capital Trust II 4.14+ Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement for Radian Group Capital Trust I or Radian Group Capital Trust II 4.15+ Form of Preferred Security Certificate for Radian Group Capital Trust I and Radian Group Capital Trust II (included in Exhibit E to the Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement filed as Exhibit 4.14 hereto) 4.16+ Form of Trust Preferred Securities Guarantee Agreement 4.17+ Form of Expense Agreement (included in Exhibit D to the Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement filed as Exhibit 4.14 hereto) 4.18* Form of Deposit Agreement 4.19* Form of Deposit Agreement 4.20** Form of Unit Agreement 4.21** Form of Unit Certificate 5.1+ Opinion of Drinker Biddle & Reath LLP as to Radian Group Inc. 5.2+ Opinion of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust I 5.3+ Opinion of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust II Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock Dividends 	4.9**	Form of certificate of designation with respect to any preferred stock (together with form of preferred stock certificate)
 4.12+ Trust Agreement of Radian Group Capital Trust I 4.13+ Trust Agreement of Radian Group Capital Trust II 4.14+ Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement for Radian Group Capital Trust I or Radian Group Capital Trust II 4.15+ Form of Preferred Security Certificate for Radian Group Capital Trust I and Radian Group Capital Trust II (included in Exhibit E to the Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement filed as Exhibit 4.14 hereto) 4.16+ Form of Trust Preferred Securities Guarantee Agreement 4.17+ Form of Expense Agreement (included in Exhibit D to the Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement filed as Exhibit 4.14 hereto) 4.18* Form of Deposit Agreement 4.19* Form of Depositary Receipt 4.20** Form of Unit Agreement 4.21** Form of Unit Agreement 4.21** Form of Unit Certificate 5.1+ Opinion of Drinker Biddle & Reath LLP as to Radian Group Inc. 5.2+ Opinion of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust I 5.3+ Opinion of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust II Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock Dividends 	4.10+	Certificate of Trust of Radian Group Capital Trust I
 4.13+ Trust Agreement of Radian Group Capital Trust II 4.14+ Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement for Radian Group Capital Trust I or Radian Group Capital Trust II 4.15+ Form of Preferred Security Certificate for Radian Group Capital Trust I and Radian Group Capital Trust II (included in Exhibit E to the Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement filed as Exhibit 4.14 hereto) 4.16+ Form of Trust Preferred Securities Guarantee Agreement 4.17+ Form of Expense Agreement (included in Exhibit D to the Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement filed as Exhibit 4.14 hereto) 4.18* Form of Deposit Agreement 4.19* Form of Depositary Receipt 4.20** Form of Unit Agreement 4.21** Form of Unit Certificate 5.1+ Opinion of Drinker Biddle & Reath LLP as to Radian Group Inc. 5.2+ Opinion of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust I 5.3+ Opinion of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock Dividends 	4.11+	
 4.14+ Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement for Radian Group Capital Trust I or Radian Group Capital Trust II 4.15+ Form of Preferred Security Certificate for Radian Group Capital Trust I and Radian Group Capital Trust II (included in Exhibit E to the Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement filed as Exhibit 4.14 hereto) 4.16+ Form of Trust Preferred Securities Guarantee Agreement 4.17+ Form of Expense Agreement (included in Exhibit D to the Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement filed as Exhibit 4.14 hereto) 4.18* Form of Deposit Agreement 4.19* Form of Depositary Receipt 4.20** Form of Unit Agreement 4.21** Form of Unit Certificate 5.1+ Opinion of Drinker Biddle & Reath LLP as to Radian Group Inc. 5.2+ Opinion of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust I 5.3+ Opinion of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust II 12+ Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock Dividends 	4.12+	
 4.15+ Form of Preferred Security Certificate for Radian Group Capital Trust I and Radian Group Capital Trust II (included in Exhibit E to the Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement filed as Exhibit 4.14 hereto) 4.16+ Form of Trust Preferred Securities Guarantee Agreement 4.17+ Form of Expense Agreement (included in Exhibit D to the Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement filed as Exhibit 4.14 hereto) 4.18* Form of Deposit Agreement 4.19* Form of Depositary Receipt 4.20** Form of Unit Agreement 4.21** Form of Unit Certificate 5.1+ Opinion of Drinker Biddle & Reath LLP as to Radian Group Inc. 5.2+ Opinion of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust I 5.3+ Opinion of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust II 12+ Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock Dividends 	4.13+	
 4.16+ Form of Trust Preferred Securities Guarantee Agreement 4.17+ Form of Expense Agreement (included in Exhibit D to the Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement filed as Exhibit 4.14 hereto) 4.18* Form of Deposit Agreement 4.19* Form of Depositary Receipt 4.20** Form of Unit Agreement 4.21** Form of Unit Certificate 5.1+ Opinion of Drinker Biddle & Reath LLP as to Radian Group Inc. 5.2+ Opinion of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust I 5.3+ Opinion of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust II 12+ Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock Dividends 		
4.17+ Form of Expense Agreement (included in Exhibit D to the Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement filed as Exhibit 4.14 hereto) 4.18* Form of Deposit Agreement 4.19* Form of Depositary Receipt 4.20** Form of Unit Agreement 4.21** Form of Unit Certificate 5.1+ Opinion of Drinker Biddle & Reath LLP as to Radian Group Inc. 5.2+ Opinion of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust I 5.3+ Opinion of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust II 12+ Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock Dividends		
hereto) 4.18* Form of Deposit Agreement 4.19* Form of Depositary Receipt 4.20** Form of Unit Agreement 4.21** Form of Unit Certificate 5.1+ Opinion of Drinker Biddle & Reath LLP as to Radian Group Inc. 5.2+ Opinion of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust I 5.3+ Opinion of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust II Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock Dividends	4.16+	
 4.19* Form of Depositary Receipt 4.20** Form of Unit Agreement 4.21** Form of Unit Certificate 5.1+ Opinion of Drinker Biddle & Reath LLP as to Radian Group Inc. 5.2+ Opinion of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust I 5.3+ Opinion of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust II 12+ Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock Dividends 	4.17+	
 4.20** Form of Unit Agreement 4.21** Form of Unit Certificate 5.1+ Opinion of Drinker Biddle & Reath LLP as to Radian Group Inc. 5.2+ Opinion of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust I 5.3+ Opinion of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust II 12+ Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock Dividends 	4.18*	
 4.21** Form of Unit Certificate 5.1+ Opinion of Drinker Biddle & Reath LLP as to Radian Group Inc. 5.2+ Opinion of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust I 5.3+ Opinion of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust II 12+ Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock Dividends 	4.19*	
5.1+ Opinion of Drinker Biddle & Reath LLP as to Radian Group Inc. 5.2+ Opinion of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust I 5.3+ Opinion of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust II 12+ Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock Dividends		
5.2+ Opinion of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust I 5.3+ Opinion of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust II Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock Dividends	4.21**	Form of Unit Certificate
 5.3+ Opinion of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust II Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock Dividends 	5.1+	
Opinion of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust II Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock Dividends	5.2+	Opinion of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust I
12+ Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock Dividends	5.3+	
12+ Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock Dividends		Opinion of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP as to Radian Group Capital Trust II
, c	12+	
	23.1+	Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP

II - 11

Table of Contents

- 23.2+ Consent of Drinker Biddle & Reath LLP (included in Exhibit 5.1)
- 23.3+ Consent of Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP (included in Exhibits 5.2 and 5.3)
- 24+ Power of Attorney (see signature page of this Form S-3)
- 25.1* Statement of Eligibility on Form T-1 under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, of the trustee under the indenture with respect to the senior debt securities, senior subordinated debt securities, subordinated debt securities, and the subordinated debt securities to be issued to a trust
- 25.2+ Statement of Eligibility on Form T-1 under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, of the trustee under the Amended and Restated Trust Agreement of Radian Group Capital Trust I
- 25.3+ Statement of Eligibility on Form T-1 under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, of the trustee under the Amended and Restated Trust Agreement of Radian Group Capital Trust II
- 25.4+ Statement of Eligibility on Form T-1 under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, of the trustee under the Trust Preferred Securities Guarantee related to Radian Group Capital Trust I and II

Filed herewith.

II - 12

^{*} To be filed by amendment, or as applicable to a particular offering of securities, as an exhibit to a Current Report on Form 8-K, pursuant to Regulation S-K, Item 601(b).

^{**} To be filed as an exhibit to a report pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.